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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and'the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, Nev*/ Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED.ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol
Abuse, to enter into a sole source amendment with the vendors listed in the table below, to
expand the program infrastructure necessary to provide Medication Assisted Treatment services
to individuals with opioid use disorders by increasing the price limitation by $224,750 from
$2,250,000 to $2,474,750, with no change in the completion date of June 30, 2020, to be
effective upon Governor and the Executive Council approval. The original agreement was
approved by thej'Governor and Executive Council on August 2, 2017 {Item 10A). 100% Federal
Funds

Vendor
Vendor

Number
Location

Current

Modified

Budget'

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

Harbor Homes

Inc. ;

155358-

B001

IT Northeastern Blvd.

Nashua, NH 03062 $1,350,000 $112,375 $1,462,375

Manchester

Community
Health Center

157274-

B001

145 Hollis Street ,

Manchester, NH

03101

$900,000 $112,375 $1,012,375

- yi - •. ;) ; Total $2,250,000 $224,750 $2,474,750

Funds are available'in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 and is
anticipated to be available in" State Fiscali Year'2020, upon the availability and^-continued
appropriation of funds, in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through^rthe Budget Office without further approval form the
Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-92051010-69350000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH: B^UREAU OF DRUG
AND ALCOHOL: MAT GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title

Current

Budget
Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc $750,000 $0.00 $750,000

2019 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc $750,000 $0.00 $750,000

2020 102-500734 Contracts for Prog Svc $750,000 $224,750 $974,750

....-,.1 : Totals: $2,250,000 $224,750 $2,474,750
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this amendment is to provide additional funding in order to allow both
Harbor Homes and Manchester Community Health Center to expand services by hiring one (1)
additional staff person per location to assist persons with Opioid Use Disorder (OUD).

This request is sole source because the funds are only allowed to supplement projects
already funded under the original funding source. Additional staff will allow both locations to
further expand services offered to clients in emergency departments, hospitals and Safe
Stations. The goal of the project is to link people to ongoing treatment services, including
Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT), and provide care coordination at the respective health

centers. The goal in providing this linkage in services is; to increase the t of the number of
persons with OUD in treatment sevices, assist individuals to retain treatment services, and for
recipients to achieve long term recovery.

These contractors are currently funded to provide MAT in the areas of the state that
have the highest opioid related overdose deaths. Providing this medical treatment will reduce
the incidence of untreated and under-treated OUD. Patients also receive primary care and
counseling in the agencies in accordance with MAT best practices. These supplemental funds
will allow both agencies to expand outreach to individuals with OUD who are seeking care in
emergency departments, receiving In-patient care for OUD related health conditions, or seeking
treatment through Safe Stations. These vendors will enter into formal agreements with
hospitals to develop MAT service referral systems in order to develop a workflow that embeds
the care coordinator in discharge planning to create a seamless transition for appropriate and
eligible patients to receive MAT and primary care.

The contractors will retain 55% of care coordination clients in MAT for at least 6 months,

of those retained, 44% will have reduced opioid use at 6 month follow-up, 100% of patients
eligible for care coordination will receive a minimum of one outreach encounter within 7 days of
a missed appointment.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, these high risk,
high need individuals may lose the opportunity to receive critical, evidence-based treatment and
recovery services for opioid addiction. The loss in services may put them at a greater risk of
harm as well as diminish their ability to be productive family and community members. The
State also would not be able to leverage federal funds to address this critical need.

Area Served; Communities of Manchester and Nashua

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from Substance Abuse and Mental Health

Services Administration, Medication-assisted Treatment, MAT, Grant. Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFD) #93.243, Federal Assistance Identification Number FAIN#
TI026741.
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In the event that Federal funds become no longer available, General funds \will not be
requested to support these agreements.

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fo)
Director

Approved by:
fey A. Meyers

Commissioner

' The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services infrastructure Expansion Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this 9'^ day of July, 2018, Is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Harbor Homes, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit
corporation with a place of business at 77 Northeastern Blvd. Nashua, NH 03062.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 2, 2017, (Item #10A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the price limitation and terms
and conditions of the contract; and .

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to, increase the price limitation, adding additional staff in order to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
.contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1.462,375.'

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9330.

4. Exhibit A, Provisions Applicable to All Services, Section 1.3 to read:

1.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services
provided after June 30. 2019, unless and.until an appropriation for these services has been
received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennia.

5. Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Section 2.24 through 2.28 to read:

2.24 The Contractor shall expand integrated MAT service delivery in Nashua/Manchester through
June 30, 2020.

2.25 The Contractor shall develop a formalized agreement between the FQHC and at least one
local hospital to facilitate direct referrals to on-going treatment and recovery supports provided
by the FQHC or other agencies.

2.26 The Contractor shall facilitate care coordination and referral agreements between
Nashua/Manchester Safe Stations to ongoing treatment and recovery supports provided by
the FQHC or other agencies

Hart)or Homes Inc. Amendment #1
SS-2018-BDAS-02-MATSE-02 Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services infrastructure Expansion Contract

2.27 The Contractor shall ensure all patients who are eligible for supplemental care coordination
who enroll In treatment but do not attend a subsequent appointment receive a minimum of one
(1) outreach encounter within seven (7) calendar days of the missed appointment.

2.28 The Contractor shall develop sustainable, adequate reimbursement mechanisms for patient-
centered, effective, integrated MAT service delivery.

6. Add Exhibit B-4, Amendment #1 SPY 2019 Supplemental Budget Sheet.

7. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Harbor Homes Inc. Amendment #1
SS-2018-BDAS-02-MATSE-02 Page 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion Contract

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Katja S. Fox;
Director

Date

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

HomeSw^ heHar

n

State of . County of l^rf(c on _, before the undersigned officer,
personally appeared the person Identified dlrectl^ above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name Is
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the capacity Indicated above.

,o^i*\'Sigh'<iture of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

C  liL
•1 ' Name ̂ d Titia of,^QlaQtor Justice of the Peace

~  WILUAM C. MABTiN
, • Cnmm"|sron Expires: 4,2020

' ': . I * t

Harbor Homes IrK. Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services infrastructure Expansion Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.
s

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title;

Hart)or Homes Inc.

SS-2018-BDAS-02-MATSE-02

Amendment #1

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized' acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally, identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

I.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. '"Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
■disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health arid
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
sen/ices - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS information

Security Requirements
Page 1 of 9 • Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-.C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or'identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birthr mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initia
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be.bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards:

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only.be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSjQN OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use cornputer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End' User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA., If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks.- End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendere'd under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in th*e implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations. 1

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location ahd identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential! Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, antl-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Extiiljit K Contractor Initials
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any. State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program •
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion.and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media^ (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this '
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

c

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V4.Lasl update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security, awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core. functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work vyith the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
.State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
,and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
.obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable subrcontractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System,
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life , of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the'survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any'State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department. ■

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent "future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring sen/ices, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 {5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements

'established^by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
■Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
• for the Department of Inforrriation Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify' the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2)^ hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that'all End Users:

a. comply, with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvpted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is

^ physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
•derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, vused and
disclosed, using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this.
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the'
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or corifirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a .core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and; if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

= DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy Issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 9 of 9 Date



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secreiary of Stale of the State of New. Hampshire, do hereby ceitily that HARBOR HOMES, INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 15, 1980,1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as-far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 62778

Certificate Number; 0004097603

OJ op

y
uu

<5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 14th day of May A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

^cJ\ , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elect^ Officer of the^Ag^ncy; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of _ /kirhor -
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on
(^ate))ate)

RESOLVED: That the
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

(Date Contrac^igned)
the day of 20/^

(Date Contractighed)

duly elected,
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of ̂  lUhhr/k^A^
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day ofAag. . 2oA_S

•)/)OVlcA^

(Signature of ̂  Elects Officer)

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

a \
(Notary PuCiric/Justice of me Peace)

(K9 TAR.V .SHAb) PAMELA M. CHERIES, Notary Public
■■ MyCommisstonExpiresSaptembef 18,2018

Commission Expires:

NH OHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATB (MM/DOrrYYY)

6/19/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERfS), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementis).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03064

NAME*'^^ Kimberly Gutekunst
603-882-2766 wc. noI:

AimRRss; kQutekun$l®eatonberube.com

INSURERISIAPFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Hanover Insurance

INSURED HARHO
Harbor Homes, Inc
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062

INSURER B: Philadelphia Insurance Companies

INSURER c: Great Falls Insurance Co

INSURER 0: Selective Insurance Grouo

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1778833457 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AbbL
INSD wvn POUCYNUMBER

POUCY EFF
(MM/On/YYYYl

. POUCY EXP
/MMTOD/YYYYt LIMITS

D X COMMERCIAL CENERAL UABIUTY

« 1 X 1 OCCUR

Y $2286207 7/1/2018 7/1/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
C3AMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Fa octairrancel $1,000,000

MEO EXP (Any one person) $20,000

X Abuse PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000

POUCY 1 1 51^ 1 X 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODXTS - COMP/OP AGG S 3.000.000

s

D AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 306871 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
/Fa acridantl

S 1.000.000

ANY AUTO

HEOULED
FTOS
N-OWNED
ITOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X SC BODILY INJURY (Per accident) s

X X NC PROPERTY DAMAGE
/Par acdrlantl

s

$

D X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

306873 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000

DEO RETENTIONS $

C WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY y / N
ANYPROPRIETORff»ARTNER«XECUTIVE rjn
OFFICER/MEMBEReXCLUOED? "
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Nf A

WCD0936040018 11/26«017 11/26/2018
y  PER OTH-

STATUTE ER

E.L. EACHACaDENT $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DtSEASE - POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

A
B
D

Professional UsbiUiy
Manegement Liability
Cnme

L1VA96600e
PHS012S8460
S2288207

7/1/2018
7/1/2018
7/1/2018

7/1/2019
7/1/2019
7/1/2019

Professional "Gap*
080
Employee Distronesiy

srooo.ooo
$1,000,000
$510,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUontI R«(nark« Sclwdul*, may b« tttachtd If mora apaea la raqulrad)

Additional Named Insureds:
Harbor Homes. Inc. ■ FID# 020351932
Harbor Homes II, Inc.
Harbor Homes ill. Inc.
Heaithy at Homes, Inc. -FID# 043364080
Milford Regional Counseling Service, Inc. -FID# 222512360
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
Vlfelcoming Lighl, Inc. -FID# 020481648
See Attached...

Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St.
Concord NH 03301

•  1 . . .

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOC #;

ACORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1

AGENCY

Eaton & Berulje Insurance Agency, Inc.
NAMED INSURED

Harbor Homes. Inc
77 Northeastern Boulevard

Nashua NH 03062POUCY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC COOE

EFFECTIVE DATE;

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: 25 form T»TI p- -CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
HH Ownership, Inc.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859
Boulder Point. LLC - Map 213/Lot 5.3, Boulder Point Drive, Plymouth, NH 03264

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



77 Northeastern Blvd

Nashua, NH 03062
www.hartwrhomes.org

Harbor
dMES.Nc

A'Beacon for the Homeless for Over 30 Years

Phone: 603-882-3616

603-881-8436

Fax: 603-595-7414

■SOi-S

Mission Statement

To create and provide quality residential and supportive services for persons (and theirfamilies) cliallenfied hy.mental
iliness and hoinelessness.

A member of the

Partnership for Successful Living
A collaboration of six affiliated not-for-profit organizations providing southern New Hampshire's most vulnerable
community members with access to housing, health care, education, employment and supportive services.
www.nhparfnership.org

HarlDor Homes • Healthy at Home • Keystone Hall • Mllford Regional Counseling Services
• Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force • Welcoming,Light
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Melanson
ACCOUNTANTS • AUDITORS'

Heath

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

102 Perimeter Road

Nashua. NH 03063

(603)882-1111
melansonheath.com

Additional Offices:

Andover, MA

Greenfield. MA

To the Board of Directors of Manchester, nh

Harbor Homes, inc. ' Ellsworth, me

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. (a non
profit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2017, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finan
cial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and mainte
nance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from rpaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted Jn the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin
ion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no



such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the" financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements'referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc. as of June 30, 2017, and the
changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Harbor Homes, Inc.'s fiscal year 2016 financial state
ments, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those-audited financial
statements in our report dated November 2, 2016. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
'2016 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

-In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated November 6, 2017 on our consideration of Harbor Homes, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and :on our .tests of its cornpliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on interrial control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering .Harbor Homes Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

November 6, 2017



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Statement of Financial Position

June 30. 2017

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2016)

ASSETS

2017 2016

Current Assets;

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Patient services receivables, net

Due from related organizations
Inventory
Other assets

$  320,236

1,223,052

691.464.

474,240

67,277

60.249

■ S 80,962

862,'339
448.468

.180,466

160.913

Total Current Assets 2,836,518 1,733,148

Noncurrent Assets:

Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation

Restricted cash

Investments

Due from related organizations
Beneficial interest

Deferred compensation plan

23,364,133

428,025

331,597

345,355

161,946

f

19,139,795

382,783

8,890

318,617

143,756

•  100.591

Total Noncurrent Assets 24.631.056 20,094.432

Total Assets $  27.467.574 ' $  21.827.580

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Line of credit

Other liabilities

Current portion of capital leases payable
Current portion of mortgages payable

$  956,353

1,111,291

966.156 '
5,582
18,304-

247,589

$  233,806

789,127

100,100

256,659

47,985

256,680

Total Current Liabilities 3,305,275 1,684,357

Long Term Liabilities:
Security deposits

Deferred compensation plan
Capital leases payable, net of current portion
Mortgages payable, tax credits
Mortgages payable, net of current portion
Mortgages payable, deferred

Total-Long Term Liabilities

56,096

79,280

11,666,646

5.217.096

31,953

107,215

13,446

^  100,323
6,932,311

5.217,096

17.021.118 12.402.344

Total Liabilities 20,326,393 14,086,701

Unrestricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
' Total Net Assets

6,812,003

329.178

7.141,181

7,593,742

147.137

7,740.879

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $  27.467,574 $ . 21.827.580

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,2016)

Temporarily

Public Support and Revenue:
Public Support;

Federal grants
State and local grants
Other grants
Contributions

Fundraising events
Net assets released from restriction

Total Public Support

Revenue:

Department of Housing
and Urban Development

Veterans Administrative grants
Contracted services

Patient services revenues, net
Medicaid, net

Rent and service charges, net
Other fees and miscellaneous

Outside rent

Management fees
Investment income/(loss)

Total Revenue

Total Public Support and Revenue

Expenses:

Program
Administration

Fundraising
Total Expenses

Legal settlement, net (see Note 22)
Debt forgiveness

Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, End of Year

Unrestricted Restricted 2017 2016

Net Assets Net Assets Total Total

3,520,498 $ $  3,520,498 $ 2,758,968
6,268,872 6:268.872 3,824,837
217,600 - 217,600 -

280,525 599,406 879,931 484,631

26,620 - 26,620 20,885
417,365 (417,365) - -

10,731,480 •182,041 10,913,521 7,089,321

3,041,875 3,041,875 2,940,896

2,160.799 - 2,160,799 2,303,049

642,870 - 642,870 328,802
2,430,161 - 2,430,161 1,736,275
1,499,295 - 1,499,295 1,292,782 •-
692,803 692,803 381,691

180,355 - .  180,355 292,972

423,430 - 423,430 122,508

25,536 - 25,536 25,324
25.508 - 25.508 (5,792)

11.122.632 - 11,122.632 9.418.507

21,854,112 182,041 22,036,153 16,507,828

20,070,879 20,070,879 15,156,854

2,032,507 - 2,032,507 2,107,947

532.465 ■ • 532.465 264.974

22,635,851 - 22,635,851 17,529,775

. . . 1,119,434
- . - 98.087

(781,739) 182,041 (599,698) 195,574

7.593.742 147,137 7.740.879 7.545.305

6,812,003 $  329,178 S  7,141,181 $ 7,740.879

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

(\^th Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30. 2016)

Program Administration Fundraisino

2017

Total

Expenses;

2016

Total

Accounting fees $ $  41,814 $  102 $  41,916 S  54,671

Advertising and pron>otion 1.300 5,315 10,581 .  17,196 10,453

Client counseling and support services 59.223 9
- 59,223 40,286

Client rental assistance 5.713.823 - 5,713,823 5,148,408

Conferences, conventions, and meetings 101,990 12,702 721 -  115,413 72,387

Contracted services 1,408,890 13,329 88 1,422,307 277,409

Employee benefits 900.118 148,436 41,017 1,089,571 865,527

Food and nutrition services 104.496 - 49 104,545 75,070

Grants and donations to other organizations ' '232.089 686 18,940 251,715 190,916

Information technology 253,700 182,108 1,990 437,798 190,941

Insurance 135,755 5,680 • 228 141,663 135,910

Interest expense 421,914 75,885 1,079 •  498,878 445,569

Legal fees •  25,585 91,463 - 117,048 105,773

Membership dues 25.808 1,788 - 27,596 ■ 16,459

Miscellaneous , 57,404 38,045 •  1,418 96,867 41,700

Occupancy 939,676 120,619 12,239 .  1,072.534 752,915

Office expenses 161.297 48.862 17,074 227,233 188,582

Operational supplies '  300,203 9,131 527 309,861 191,021

Payroll taxes 574,927 76,390 28,109 679:426 520,202

Professional fees 50,627 57,660 25,164 . " 133,451 -159,402

Retirement contributions 190,318 20,727 13,134 224,179 235,265

Salaries and wages 7,364,440 992,755 352,427 8,709,622 6,734,326

Travel 94,108 2,298 1,135 97,541 83,412

}tal Expenses

Depreciation and amortization

}tal Functional Expenses

19,117,691 '

953,188

1,945,693

86,814

526,022 "

. 6.443

21,589,406

1,046.445

-  16,536,604

993.171

$  20,070.879 $ ■ 2,032,507 $  532,465 $  22,635.851 $  17,529,775

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statentents.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2016)

2017 2016

Cash Flovi« From Operating Activities; '

Change in net assets $  (599,698) $  195,574

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:

Depredation and amortization 1,046,445 993,171

(Gain)/loss on beneFidal interest (18,190) 5,747

Debt forgiveness - (98,087)

(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts receivable (360,713) 158,095

Patient services receivable .  (242,996) (158,176)
Inventory (67,277) -

Other assets 100,664 (94,844)

Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts payable 722,547 (214,819)
Accrued expenses 322,164 69,111

Deferred compensation plan (6.624) 254,400

Other liabilities (251,077) 6.624

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 645,245 1,116,796

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Security deposits 26,143 (10,541)

Purchase of fixed assets (320,785) (63,527)

Purchase of investments (322,707) -

Sale of investments - 1,409

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (617,349) (72,659)

Cash Flows From Finandng Activities:
Borrowings from lines of credit 1,500,686 110,100

Payments on lines of credit (634,631) (743,319)
Payments on capital leases (43,127) • (43,127)
Payments on long temi borrowings (224,753) (221,547)
Payments on tax aedits (21,043) (21,043)

Advances to related organizations (1,791,201) (353,583)

Repayments from related organizations 1,470,689 154,774

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Finandng Activities 256,620 (1.117.745)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 284,516 (73,608)

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 463.745 537.353

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year $  748,261 $  463,745

Supplemental disdosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid $  474.402 $  445,423

Non-cash finandng activities $  4,950,000 $

Debt forgiveness $ $  ■ 98,087

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES. INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organization:

Harbor Homes, Inc. (the Organization) is a nonprofit organization that creates
and provides quality residential and supportive services for persons.(and their
families) challenged by mental illness and/or homelessness in the State of New
Hampshire. Programs include mainstream housing, permanent housing, tran
sitional housing; and emergency shelter, as well as coniprehensive support
services that include peer support programs, job'training,'a paid employment
program, and social and educational activities.

In addition to housing and supportive services, the Organization runs a health
care clinic that is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) offering primary
medical services to the homeless and/or low-income individuals.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for
long-term purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is
based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a
review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when
deemed uncollectable.



Patient Services Receivabies, Net

Patient services receivables result from the health care services provided by
the Organization's Federally Qualified Health Care Center. Additions to the
allowance for doubtful accounts result from the provision for bad debt's.
Accounts writte'n off as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for doubt

ful accounts. The amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based

upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections,
business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare and Medicaid health'
care coverage, and other indicators.

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have
third-party coverage, which includes patients with deductible and copayment
balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill, the
Organization analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance
for doubtful collections and a provision for doubtful collections, if necessary.
For receivables associated with self-pay patients, the Organization records a
significant provision for doubtful collections in the period of, service on the
basis of its past experience, which Indicates that many patients are unable to
pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the billed rates and the amounts actually collected after all
reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the
allowance for doubtful collections. The Organization has'not changed its financial
assistance policy in fiscal year 2017. The Organization does not maintain a
material allowance for doubtful collections from'third-party payors, nor did it
have significant write-offs from third-party payors.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised of program-related merchandise held for sale in the
pharmacy, and is stated at the lower of cost or market determined by the
first-in, first-out method.

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their- fair

values in the Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains and losses
are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying Statement of
Activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is reported in the Statement of Financial Position at
cost, if purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated.
Property and equipment is capitalized if it has a cost of $5,000 or more and-a
useful life, when acquired of more than one year. Repairs, and maintenance
that do not significantly increase the useful life of the asset are expensed as
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incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful.lives of the assets, as follows:

Assets Years

Land'improvements '15
Buildings and improvements 10-40
Software 3

Vehicles 3

Furniture and fixtures 5-7 t

Equipment 5-7

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment when a significant change
in the asset's use or another indicator of possible impairrfient is present. No
irripairment losses were recognized in the financial statements in the current
period.

Beneficial Interests in Charitable Trusts Held by Others

The Organization has been named as an irrevocable beneficiary of several
charitable truMs held and administered by independent trustees. These trusts
were created independently by donors and are administered by outside agents
designated by the donors. Therefore, the Organization has neither posses
sion nor control over the assets of the trusts. At the date of notification of an

interest in a beneficial trust, a temporarily or permanently restricted contribu
tion is recorded in the. Statement'of Activities, and a beneficial interest in
charitable trusts held by others is recorded in the Statement of Financial Posi
tion M fair value using present value techniques and risk-adjusted discount
rates designed to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the expected distributions to be received under the agreement. There
after, beneficial interests in the trusts are reported at fair value in the
Statement of Financial Position, with changes'in fair value recognized in the
Statement of Activities. Upon receipt of trust distributions and/or expenditures
in satisfaction of the restricted purpose stipulated 'by the.donor, if any, tempo
rarily restricted net assets are' released to unrestricted net assets; permanently
restricted net assets are transferred to the endowment.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets available for use in general operations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject-to donor restrictions
that may or will be met by expenditures or actions and/or the passage of



time. Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted support if they
are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated
assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted
net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
Statement of Activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets whose use is limited by
donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by the passage of time nor
can be fulfilled or otherwise removed. The restrictions stipulate that resources
be maintained permanently, but permit expending.of the income generated
in accordance with the provisions of the agreements.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the

applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures
are incurred, respectively.

Patient Service Revenues, Net

Patient service revenues, net is reported at the estimated net realizable
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered.
Self-pay revenue is recorded at published charges with charitable allowances
deducted to arrive at net self-pay revenue. All other patient services revenue
is recorded at published charges with contractual allowances deducted to
arrive at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates are subject to revisions
under the provisions of reimbursement regulations. Adjustments for such
revisions are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Included in third-party
receivables are the outstanding uncompensated care pool payments.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its
charity care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established
rates. Since the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts deter
mined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are reported as deductions
from revenue (see Note 16).

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as
increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets is

specifically restricted by the donor. Amouhts received that are restricted by
the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in either temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets,
consistent with the nature of the restriction. Unconditional promises with
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payments due in future years have an implied restriction to be used in the
year the payment is due, and therefore are reported as temporarily restricted
until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support
activities of the current fiscal year or is received with permanent restrictions.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, until all conditions-on which-they depend are
substantially met.

Gifts-in-Kind Contributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash
or investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an
asset at its estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of
the asset and its estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization
policy. Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses
at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If
the ,use of the space Is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one
year, the contribution is ̂ reported as a contribution and an unconditional
promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and .
as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or.distributed.

The Organization, benefits frorti persona[ services provided by a substantial
number of volunteers. Those volunteers-have donated significant amounts of
time and services in the Organization's program operations and in its fund-
raising campaigns. However, the majority of the contributed services do not
meet the criteria for recognition in financial statements. Generally Accepted
Accpunting-Principles allow recognition of contributed services only if (a) the
services create or enhance nbnfinancial assets or (b) the services would have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to inde-^
pendent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform Granf
Guidance, and .review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the
disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or reductions of
future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's manage
ment believes that costs ultimately-disallowed, if any, would not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.
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Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of'program and supporting services activities have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. The Statement of

Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by
function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs
and supporting services benefited.

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services
benefited.

General and administrative expenses include those costs that are not directly
identifiable with any specific program, but which provide for the overall
support and direction of the Organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in
contributions received in future years.

Income Taxes

Harbor Homes, Inc. is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(a)
of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3).
The Organization has also been classified as an entity that is not a private
foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible
contributions.

The Organization is annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt
from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. If the Organization has net income
that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt
purpose, it would need to file an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax
Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump
tions that affect the reported amounts'of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates and those differences could

be material.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institu
tions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
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insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these
accounts. Credit risk associated with accounts and contributions' receivable is
considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates and because
substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from governmental
agencies and entities supportive of the Organization's mission. Investments
are monitored regularly by the Organization. Although the fair values of invest
ments are subject, to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the Organization
believes that its investment strategies are prudent for Jhe long-term welfare of
the Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most
advantageous, market at the measurement date-under current market condi
tions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
ariother valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly
to the assumption's that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unob-
servable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs
are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assump
tions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Jhese
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are
not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

f

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities
that the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions).
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The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial
statements are: ' '

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment
assets and unconditional contributions receivable.

•  Recurring measurement of due from related Organizations (note 4) -
Level s. ,

•  Recurring measurement of investments (note 6) - Level 1.

•  Recurring measurement of beneficial interests (note 8) - Level 3.

•  Recurring measurement of lines of credit'(note 10) - Level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of capital leases payable (note 11)^ Level 2..

•  Recurring measurement of mortgages payable (notes 12 -14)' - Level 2.

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables,
other .assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and' other liabilities,
approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of the items, and are
considered to fall within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year
financial statements.

3. Receivables. Net:

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2017 consists of the following:

Receivable Allowance Net

Grants $ 1,045,069 $ - . $ 1,045,069
Pledges 95,500 - 95,500
Residents 96,844 (55,592) 41,252

Other 39,713 - 39,713
Security deposits 1.518 - 1.518

Total $ 1-,278,644 $ (55,592) $ 1,223,052
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Patient accounts receivable, related to the Organization's federally qualified
health care center, consisted of the following at June 30, 2017:

Medicaid

Medicare

Other

Total

Receivable

$  435,044 $

130,855

592.924

$  1,158,823 $

Allowance

(65.825)
(12,319)

■(389.215)

(467.359)

Net-

$  369,219
118,536
203.709

$  691,464

4. Due From Related Organizations:

Due from related .organizations represents amounts due to' Harbor Homes,
Inc. from related entities whereby corrimpn control, is shared with the same
Board of Directors (See Note 18). These balances exist because certain
receipts and disbursements of the related organizations flow through the
■Harbor Homes, Inc. main operating cash account. The related organizations
and their balances at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

Current:
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism
Harbor Homes III, Inc.
Healthy at Home
HH Ownership, Inc.
Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force ■

Subtotal current

380,115
5,748

77,309
2,016

' 9.052
474,240

Noncurrent:
Harbor Homes II, Inc.
Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc.
Welcoming Light, Inc.

Subtotal noncurrent

Total

134,371
48,494

162,490

345,355

$  819,595

Although managenhent believes the above receivables to be collectible, there
is significant risk that the noncurrent portion may not be.

As discussed in" note, 2, the valuation technique used fondue from related organ
izations is a Level 3 measure because there are no observable market
transactions. Changes |n the fair value of assets measured at fair value on'a
recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs are comprised of the
following:
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Beginning balance June 30, 2016 $ • 499,083
Advances 1,791,201

Reductions (1,470,689)

Ending balance June 30, 2017 $ 819,595

5. . Property. Equipment and Depreciation:

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented
below:

Land $ 1786,690
Land Improvements 12,290.

Buildings 19,715,780
Building improvements 6,244,321
Software 515,010

Vehicles 211,878

Furniture and fixtures 159,591

Equipment 400,464
Dental equipment 141,716
Medical equipment 58,022
Construction in progress 304,669

Subtotal 30,550,431

Less: accumulated

depreciation (7,186,298)

Total $ 23,364,133

' I

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 totaled $1,046,445.

6. Investments:

The Organization's investments consist of the following at June 30, 2017:

Unrealized

Market Gain or (Loss)

Cost Value To Date

Equities $ 236,270 $ 240,758 $ , 4,488
Mutual Funds 90,839 90,839 , -

Total $ 327,109 $ 331,597 $ 4,488
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7. Restricted Cash:

Restricted cash consists of escrow accounts and reserves which are held for

various purposes. The following is a summary of the restricted accounts;

Security deposits . $ 56,578
Reserve for replacements 367,077
Residual receipt deposits 4,370 -

Total $ 428,025

Security deposits held will be returned to tenants when they vacate. Reserve
for replacement accounts are required, by the Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) and the City of Nashua and are used for the
replacement of property with prior approval. Residual receipt deposits are
required by the Department of Housing and Urban Development and are to
be used at the discretion of HUD.

8. , Beneficial Interest:

The Organization has a beneficial interest in the Harbor Homes, .Inc. Fund
(the Fund), a component -fund of the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation's
(the Foundation) Nashua Region'. The Organization will receive distributions
from the Fund based on a spending allocation, which is a percentage of the
assets set by the Foundation and reviewed annually. The current spending
percentage is 4.5% of the market value (using»a 20-quarter average) of the
Fund. At June 30, 2017, the value of the fund was $161,946.

As,discussed in note 2, the valuation technique used for beneficial interest is
a Level 3 measure because there are no observable market transactions.
Changes in the Ifair value of assets measured at fair value on a recurring
basis using significant unobservable inputs are comprised of the following:

Beginning balance June 30, 2016 $ 14i3,756
Advances 18,190

Reductions

Ending balance June 30, 2017 $ 161,946
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9. Accrued Expenses:

Accrued expenses include the following;

Mortgage interest $ 26,804
Payroll and related taxes 491,506
Compensated absences 592,981

Total. $ 1,111,291

10. Lines of Credit:

At June 30, 2017, the Organization had a $1,000,000 of credit available from
TD Bank, N. A. due October 31, 2017, secured by all assets. The Organiza
tion is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments to TD Bank,
N. A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2017, the
credit line had an outstanding balance of $620,072 at an Jnterest rate of
5.25%.

.  In addition, the Organization had a $500,000 of credit available from
TD Bank, N. A. due October 31, 2017, secured by all assets. The Organiza
tion is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments to
TD Bank, N. A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted daily. As of June 30,
2017, the credit line had an outstanding balance of $346,084 at an interest
rate of 5.25%

11. Capital Leases:

The Organization is the lessee of certain equipment under a capital lease
expiring in November of 2017. Future minimum lease payments under this
lease are as follows:

Year Amount

2018 ^ . $ 18,304

Total $ 18,304

At June 30, 2017, equipment of $132,000, net of depreciation of $24,200,
related to this capital lease.

12. Mortgages Payable. Tax Credits:

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of a mortgage payable to the Commu
nity Development Finance Authority through the Community Development
Investment Program, payable through the sale of tax credits to donor organi-
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zatibns, maturing in 2020, secured by real property located at 59 Factory
Street in Nashua, NH. This amount is amortized over ten years at zero
percent interest. The amount due at June 30, 2017 is $79,280.

13. Mortgages Payable:

Mortgages payable as of June 30, 2017 consisted of the following:

A mortgage payable to Enterprise Bank and Trust Company,
with monthly interest only payments required at a fixed rate
of 4%, maturing on February. 28, 2019, secured'by real

property located at 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard in
Nashua. NH. ' • $ 3,375,000

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings Bank,
due in monthly installments of $7,879, including principal
and interest at an adjustable rate of for the initial ten years
based on the then prevailing 10/30 Federal Home Loan
Bank Amortizing Advance Rate plus 3.00% and resetting in
year 11 based on the then prevailing 10/20 Federal Horhe
Loan Bank Amortizing Advance Rate plus 3.00%, maturing
in 2043, secured by real property located at 335 Somerville
Street in Manchester, NH. 1,163,150

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings Bank, -
due in monthly installments of $6,193, including principal
and interest at an adjustable rate of 4.57% for twenty years,
maturing in 2043, secured by real property located at 335
Somerville Street in Manchester, NH. 1,141,480

A mortgage .payable to New Hampshire Community Loan.
Fund, Inc., with interest only payments required, at a fixed
rate of 6%, maturing December of 2018, secured by real
property located at 75-77 Northeastern Boulevard in
Nashua, NH. 1,125,000

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings' Bank,
due in monthly installments of $7,768, including principal
and interest at 7.05%, maturing in, 2040, secured by real
property located at 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH. 1,060,851

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings Bank,
due in monthly installments of $5,126, including principal
and interest at 6.97%, maturing in 2036, secured by real
property located at 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH. 648,007

(continued)
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(continued)

A mortgage payable to IWerrimack County Savings Bank,
due in monthly installments of $5,324, including principal
and interest at 4.38%, maturing in 2031, secured by real
property located at 45 High Street in Nashua, NH. ,, ' 638,618

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings Bank,
due in nnonthly installments of $3,996, including principal
and interest at 4.75%, maturing in 2036, secured by real
property located at 46 Spring Street in Nashua, NH. 604,365

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings Bank,
due in monthly installments of $2,692, including principal
and interest at 4.75%, maturing in 2040, secured by real
property located at 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH. ■ 454,374

A mortgage payable, to TD Bank, due in monthly
installments of $5,387, including principal and interest at ■

3-.97%, maturing in 2025, secured-by real, property located
on Maple Street in Nashua, NH. 383,467

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings Bank,
due in monthly installments of $2,077, including principal
and interest at 5.57% for the first five years, then adjusting
in June 2015, 2020, 2025, and 2030 to the Federal Home

Loan Bank Community Development Advance Rate in
effect, plus 2.75%, maturing in 2035, secured by real
property located at 189 Kinsley Street in Nashua, NH. 282,700

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings Bank,
due in monthly installments of $1,425, including principal •
and interest at 4.75% for five years and adjusting to the then-
current Federal Home Loan Bank 5/25 Amortizing CDA Rate
plus hwo and three-quarters percent in year six and every
five years thereafter, maturing in 2042, secured by real
property located at 45 High Street in Nashua, NH. 249,127

A mortgage payable to Mascoma Savings Bank, fsb., due in
monthly installments of- $1,731, including principal and
interest at 7.00% maturing in 2036, secured by real property ,
located at 7 Trinity Street in Claremont, NH. . 220,206

A mortgage payable to New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Authority, due in monthly installments of
$3,419, including principal and interest at 1.00% maturing in ■
2022, secured by a mobile van. 193,493

(continued)
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(continued)

A mortgage payable to the Department of Housing and
Urban Development, due in monthly installments of $2,385,
including principal and interest at 9.25%, maturing in 2022,
secured by real property located at 3 Winter Street in
Nashua, NH. • ' 117,182

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings Bank,
due in monthly installments of $1,144, including principal
and interest at a variable rate (5.61% at June-30, 2012),
maturing in 2029, secured by real property located at 24
Mulberry Street in Nashua, NH. 116,954

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings, Bank,
due in monthly installments of $779, including principal and
interest at 7.20% for the first five years, then adjusting in '
April 2012, 2017, 2022, 2027, and 2032 to the Federal
Home Loan Bank Community Development Advance Rate ■

in effect, plus 225 basis points, maturing in 2037, secured
■ by real property located at 4 New. Haven Drive, Unit 202 in
Nashua, NH. ' ' ' 93,243

A mortgage payable to Merrimack County Savings Bank,
due in monthly installments of $2,993, including principal
and interest at 3.89%, maturing in 2035, secured by real
property located at 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH. ■ 47,018

Total 11,914,235

Less amount due within one year (247,589)

Mortgages payable, net of current portion $ ̂^1^666^W^

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.

Year . Amo'unt

2018 . $ 247,589

2019 ^ *4,782,513
2020 297,052

2021 . 312,481

2022 ,322,022

Thereafter ' 5.952.578

Total $ 11,914,235
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14. Mortgages Payable. Deferred:

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding at June 30, 2017 total
ing $5,217,096. These loans are not required to be repaid unless the Organ
ization is in default with the terms of the loan agreements or if an operating
surplus occurs within that program.

Several of these loans are special financing from the New Harhpshire Housing
Finance Authority (NHHFA) to fund specific projects. These notes are interest
free for thirty years with principal payments calculated annually at the discre
tion of the lender.

The following is a list of deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2017:

City of Manchester:
Somerville Street property $ 300,000

Total City of Manchester 300,000-

City of Nashua:
■  Factory Street property 580,000
• Spring Street property 491,000
High Street fire system 65,000

Total City of Nashua 1,136,000

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB):
Factory Street property 400,000
Somerville Street property 400,000
Spring Sti'eet property . ,398,747

Total FHLB 1,198,747 ,

NHHFA: ' .

Factory Street property 1 i000,000
Spring Street property* 550,000
Charles Street property 32,349
Somerville Street property ' 1,000,000

Total NHHFA 2.582.349

Total Mortgages Payable, Deferred $ 5,217,096

* During fiscal year 2017, the Organization was out of compliance with the income eligibility
terms of the loan agreement due to a tenant obtaining a higher income wage after
entrance to the program. The lender is aware of the noncompliance and it is expected that
this temporary noncompliance will be resolved when the specific tenant moves out.
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15. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the follo\ving purposes at
June 30. 2017:

,  Purpose Amount

Above and beyond $ 129
Art supplies 289
Claremoht 15,000

Dalianis bricks * 735

DAV ■ 726

Dental equipment 10,000
.Golf event 1,200
- Mobile crisis 105,873

Northeastern Blvd.,. 107,000
Operation brightside ' 2,000
PEC 42
People's United grant '8,375
Plymouth capital project 25,000
SCOAP 1,292

^  Software 42,067
■■ Sfanddown, -2.764
Thanksgiving , ' 356
Veterans Christmas fund 700

Veterans computers 5,630

Total $■' 329,178

Net assets were released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying
the restricted"purpose or by the passage of time.

16. Patient Service Revenue. Net:

The Organization recognizes patient services revenue associated with services
provided to patients who have Medicaid; Medicare, third-party payer, and

■ managed care plans coverage on the basis of contractual rates for services
rendered. For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualiify for charity care,
the Organization recognizes revenue on the basis of its standard rates for
services provided or on the basis of discounted rates if negotiated or provided
by the Organization's policy. Charity care services are computed using a sliding
fee scale based on patient income and family size. On the basis of historical
experience, a significant portion of the Organization's uninsured patients will
be unable or unwilling to pay (for the services provided. Thus, the Organiza
tion' records a provision for bad debts related to uninsured patients in the
period the services are provided.
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The Organization accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient
is classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies,
which define charity services as those costs for which no payment is antici
pated.-The Organization uses federally established poverty guidelines to
assess the level of discount provided to the patient . The Organization is
required to provide a full discount to patients with annual incomes at or below
100% of the poverty guidelines, but may charge a nominal copay. If the patient is
unable to pay the copay, the amount is written off to charity care. All patients
are charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount program based on house
hold size and household income. No discounts may be provided to patients
with incomes over 200% of federal poverty guidelines.

Patient services revenue, net of provision for bad debts and contractual allow
ances and discounts, consists of the following;

2017 2016
• Chantable Net Patient Net Patient

Gross Contractual Care Service Service

Charges Allowances Allowances Revenue Revenue

Medlcald $  1.834:675 $  (363,773) $ $  1,470,902 $  1,159,434

Medicare 528,336 (244,296) - 284,040 246,337

Third-party 1,151,592 (591,136) • 560,456 428,481

Sliding fee/free care 215,008 - (196,108) 18,900 57,275

Self-pay 304,314 - (2,669) 301,645 140,412

Subtotal $ ' 4.033.925 $  (1,199,205) $ (198,777) 2,635,943 2,031,939

Provision for bad debts (205,782) (295,664)

Total $  2,430,161 $  1,736,275

17, Client Rental Assistance:

The Organization has multiple grants requiring the-payment of rents on behalf
of the consumer. Rent expense totaling approximately $5.7 million is comprised
of leases held in the Organization's name and the responsibility of the Organ
ization, leases in consumers' names, or rents paid as client assistance.

18. Transactions with Related Parties:

The Organization's clients perform janitorial services for Harbor Homes HUD I, II
and III, Inc., Welcoming Light, Inc., Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc.,
Healthy at Home, Inc., Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, .and Southern
NH HIV/AIDS Task Force, related organizations. These services are billed to
the related organizations and reported as revenues in the accompanying
financial statements based on actual cost. . .

24



The Organization currently has several contracts with Healthy at home, Inc.
to receive various skilled nursing services.' CNA services and companion
services for its clients. All of the contracts are based on per diem fees,
ranging from $16 per hour for companion services to $100 per visit for skilled
nursing services.

The Organization is a corporate guarantor for Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism in relation to two mortgages on their Amherst Street property. The
guaranties consist of one bond in the amount of $3,963,900 and a mortgage
in the amount of $200,000.

During the year, the Organization rented office space,- under tenant at will
agreements, to Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force, Greater Nashua Council
on Alcoholisrh, and, Healthy at Home, Inc., related parties. The rental income
under these agreements totaled $52,305, $41,250 and $51,137, respectively,
for fiscal year 2017.

Harbor Homes, Inc. received management fees totaling $25,536 from its
related organizations that have HUD projects.

The Organization is considered a commonly controlled organization with
several related entities by way of its common board of directors. However,
management believes that the principal prerequisites for preparing combined
financial statements are not met, and therefore separate statements have
been prepared.

The following are the commonly controlled organizations-

Harbor Homes II, Inc.

Harbor Homes III, Inc.
HH Ownership, Inc.
Welcoming Light, Inc.
Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc.
Healthy at Home, Inc.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force

19. Deferred Compensation Plan:

In fiscal year 2017, the Organization discontinued its 403(b) plan and deferred
compensation plan for certain employees and directors. It also implemented a
401 (k) retirement plan. Upon meeting the eligibility criteria, employees can
contribute a portion of their wages to the 401 (k) plan. The Organization matches
a percentage of the employee contribution based on years of service. Total
matching contributions paid by the Organization for the year ended June 30,
2017 were $224,179.

25



20. Concentration of Risk:

The Organization received revenue as follows:

Federal grants. $ 16%
State, local, and other agencies 28%
Department of Housing and Urban Development 14%
Department of Veterans Affairs 10%
Medicaid 7%

All other support and revenue ' 25%

Total $ 100%

21. Contingencies:

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal,
state, and local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is
subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory
actions unknown or unassorted at this time. Government activity continues to
increase with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible
violations by healthcare providers of fraud and abuse statutes and-regula
tions, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as
well as significant repayments for patient service previously billed: Manage
ment is not aware of any material incidents of npncpmpliance; however, the
possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if any, are
not presently determinable.

22. Legal Settlement Net:

In 2011, the State of New Hampshire removed the ability to bill for certain
Medicaid services and the Organization filed suit. The Organization settled
with the State in 2015 ahd was awarded $1,350,000 in fiscal year 2016. The
settlement was received net of legal fees.

23. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

In fiscal year 2017, the Organization early adopted Accounting Standard
Update (ASU) No. 2016-18, State of Cash Flows (Topic 203): Restricted
Cash. The amendments in this update require that a Statement of Cash
Flows explain the change during the fiscal year of restricted cash as part of
the total of cash and cash equivalents.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents,
and restricted cash reported in the Statement of Financial Position to the
same such amounts reported in the Statement of Cash Flows."

Cash and Cash Equivalents ; $ 320,236
Restricted Cash 428,025

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash
shown in the Statement of Cash Flows. ' $ 748,261

24. Subsequent Events:

In accordance with the provisions set . forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent
"  Events, events and transactions from July 1; 2017 through November 6,

2017, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, have
been evaluated by management for disclosure.

At June 30, 2017, the financial statements reported current liabilities that
exceeded current assets. This is attributable to several unusual factors. In

June 2017, the Organization determined that a major funder had overpaid a.
grant in the amount of $250,000. As a result, a liability was recorded and a
repayment agreement over a six-month period was agreed-upon, with the
funder reducing its subsequent monthly payments; In addition, the Organiza
tion is currently injhe beginning stages of several construction projects that
will be completed in fiscal years 2018 and 2019. Historically, the Organization
has received project funding in advance to cover upfront costs, such as
architects, engineers, and consultants. Full funding for these projects is
anticipated from grants and tax credits. The grants will not be available to the
Organization until construction loans and tax credits have been executed.
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PETER J. KELLEHER, CCSW, LICSW

E-mail: p.kellehcr@harborhomes.org

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Pre5ent

2002-Present

1997-Present

1995-Prcscnt

1995-Present

1982-Prcscnl

2003-2066

President & CEO, Southern NH HIV Task Force
President & CEO, GNCA, Inc. Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Healthy. At Home, Inc., Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc., Milfprd, NH
President & CEO, Welcoming Light, Inc., Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, NH
Currently employed as chief executive officer for nonprofit corporation (and affiliates) providing'
residential, supported employment, and social club services for persons with long-term mental illness
and/or homeless. Responsible forjnitiation, development, and oversight of 33 programs comprising a
$10,000,000 operating budget; proposaidevelopment resulting-ln more than $3,000,000 in grants annually;
oversight of 330 management and direct care professionals.

Consultant

Providing consultation and technical assistance throughout the State to aid service and mental health
brgflhizations

1980- 1982

1979 - 1980

,1978 - 1979

1977 - 1979

1976

1971 - 1976

Real Estate Broker, LeVaux Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management specialist.

Clinical Coordinator, Task Oriented Communities, Wollham, MA
Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to approximately 70 mentally ill/ mentally
retarded clients. Hired, "directly supervised, and.traincd a full-time staff of 20 residential coordinators.
Developed community residences for the above clients in three Boston suburbs. Provided emergency
consullalion on a 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six group homes and one
sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibilities included some financial management, quality
assurance, and other accountability to state authorities.

Faculty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
Instructor for an introductory group psychotherapy course offered Uirough the Social Work Department.

Senior Social Worker/Assistant Director, Massachusetts Tuberculosis Treatment Center II, a unit of
Middlesex County Hospital,. Waltham, MA
Functioned as second.in command and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdisciplinary team members,
and implemented a six-month residential program for individuals afflicted with recurring tuberculosis and
alcoholism. Provided group and individual therapy, relaxation training.

Social Worker, Massachusetts Institute ofTcchnology, Out^Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Employed in full-time summer position providing out patient counseling to individuals and groups of the
MIT community.

Program Counselor/Supervisor, Massachusetts Institute ofTcchnology, MIT/Welleslcy College
Upward Bound Program, Cambridge and Wellesley, MA '
Major responsibilities consisted of psycho educational counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision
of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy development.



EDUCATION

1988-1991 Rivier College, Nashua, NH —Bachelor of Sdencc, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS

Licenied Certified Public Accountant in the State of New Hampshire
Member of the New Hiampshirc Sociery of Certified Public Accounwnts
Member of the Americfui lnsdtute of Ceriified Public Accountants

SOtn-WARK EXPRRIRNCK

Excel, Word, Powerpoint, Pro-Fx Tax software, Pro-Fx Trial balance software, Quickbooks,
Peachtree, T-Valuc, various auditing software programs
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JONATHAN W. BROWN

EDUCATION

2014 MBA - Masters Business Administration, University of Phoenix

2012 BSIT/BSA - Bachelor of Science Information Technology/Business Systems Analysis,

University of Phoenix

EXPERIENCE

12/06 INDIAN STREAM HEALTH CENTER, INC., Colebrook, NH

to (A nonprofit integrated system designated as a Federally Qualified Health Center with

pres. revenues of $6.60 million)

Chief Executive Officer f 1 /15 to oresentl

Responsibilities: Management of two delivery sites covering three states providing

medical, mental health, substance misuse, and pharmacy services to approximately

4,000 patients annually. Reports to Board of Directors. Direct reports include Chief

Financial Officer, Chief Health Officer, Compliance Director, grants management and

marketing staff.

Accomplishments:

♦  National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) Level III Patient-Centered Medical

Home (PCMH) Accreditation

♦  9% Operating Surplus in Fiscal Year 2015 and 8% Operating Surplus in Fiscal Year

2016

♦ = Expansion of Oral Health, Mental Health, and Substance Misuse Services

• ' Hired eight clinic£d providers in 18 months (5 medical and 3 behavioral health)

•  Instituted $15.00 livable wage

♦  Coordinated the development of a two-year strategic plan, including new Mission

and Vision Statements

•  Grown grant funding approximately 125% since 2015-

•  Hired, promoted or realigned the following positions: Chief Financial Officer, Chief

Health Officer, Pharmacy Director, Behavioral Health Director, Medical Health

Director and Director of Human Resources.

Chief Financial Officer (8 /12 to 1/151

Responsibilities: Management of $5+ million budget, including ̂ o delivery sites in

three states providing medical, niental health, substance misuse, and pharmacy

services to approximately 4,000 patients annually. Report to the Chief Executive Officer.



JONATHAN W. BROWN

Direct reports included Information Systems Director, Facilities Directors, Front Desk

and Scheduling Manager, and Revenue Cycle Manager.

AccompUfthments:

•  Increased Net Fee Revenue 15% from prior period

•  Increased Gross Collections from 42% to 86%"

•  Reduced Fee Receivables by 60% and Bad Debt Allowance by 60%

•  Aggregate Insurance Days in AR = 45

, • Managed $500,000 capital renovation project at Colebrook, NH facility which

included a pharmacy, facility generator, elevator, and ADA upgrades' -

•  Opened retail and 340B Pharmacy in May 2013

•  Managed Design/Build capital project to open satellite site in Canaan, VT in May

2014

•  Averaged 9% Operating Margin Fisccd Years 2012 - 2015

Information Systems 85 Facilities Manager (12/06 to 7/121

Responsibilities: Management of Electronic Health Record, Patient Management

System, hardware, software, network, all data systems, facility and environmental

safety and security. Report to Chief Financial Officer. Direct reports included

Information Technology Assistant, Housekeepers.

Accomplishments:

•  Facilitated implementation of Electronic Health Record and Patient Management

System

•  Transitioned paper payroll system to electronic system, including services from ADP

•  Facilitated development of Bi-directional Lab interface with Hospital

•  Managed $1 million capital project that included 2,400 sq/ft addition and

renovations

•  Managed capital campaign for above mentioned capital project that raised $188,000

•  Authored first Information Technology and Facilities Management organizational

policies and procedures manual

PROFESSIONAL/COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS

Medical Group Management Association-,'2017

American College of Healthcare Executives (enrolled in Fellowship Program), 2017

North Country Health Consortium (Board of Directors), 2017

(Treasurer 2016 and 2017)

North Country Community Care Organization (Board of Directors), 2017

New Hampshire Rural Accountable Care Organization (Board of Directors), 2017

North Country Chamber of Commerce (Board of Directors), 2011-2014, 2017
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JONATHAN W. BROWN

(Vice President 2012 and President 2013\

North Country Accountable Care Organization (Board Directors),-2015 „

George Washington University Geiger Gibson Capstone Fellowship in Community Health

Policy and Leadership, 2015

Neil and Louise Tillotson Grantee Learning Community, 2013

Office of Rural Health Policy Rural Voices Leadership Institute, 2012

Leadership North Country Program, 2011

Bi-State Leadership Development Program, 2010-2011

REFERENCES -

Available upon request
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Graclela Sllvfa Slronlch*Kalkan MO.

Present Mailing Addr^s

V

1

f

._Altern.8tjYe;MallIng Address

Medical Education

Unlversldad de Buenos Aires

Ciudad Autdnofna de Buenos Aires

Argentina
MD. 12/21/1979

School Awards & Membership in Honorary/Professional Societies

Cardiology Argentine Society; 1982-1986 associated member
Azcuenaga 980, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Intensive Care Argentine Society: 1985-1992 associated member 1992-1997Board's Member
Cnel.NlcetoVega 4617, Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Argentine Association of Enteral and Parenteral Nutrition; 1983-1997, Founder and Board's
-Member

Lavaile 3643 3F Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
BIbloglc's Security Comminee Navy Hospital: 1985-1997 Board's Member 1986-1997
Patricias Argentinas 351, Ciudad Auldnoma de Buenos Aires; Argentina. '

Certifications / LIcensure

NPl:l76075153r
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state of New Hampshire Full License 2/1/2012 to 6/30/2014 # 15553
OEA Registration: FS 2954851

ACLS Certification

U.S.M.LE/ E.C.F.M.G: 08/27/2001

Argentina:

society Of Critical Care, Cludad Autdnoma de Buenos A,res.

—oistnct, auda,

National License; #58049 October ActlvelSSO-March 1997 Book 17 Page 18 '

Work Experience:

The Doctor's office:

102 Bay Street, Manchester, NH 03104
General Practice, November 20H-present.

American Red Cross Massachusetts Bay Chapter:
139 Main St Cambridge, MA 02142-1530

■  :nf:its::d F;^t'i;d."o6ToVr4^^^^^^^
The Doctor's Office:

102 Bay Street,. Manchester, NH 03104
First Line Theraphy Lifestyle Educator, Coach. 05/20U-present.

Caritas Saint Elizabeth's Medical Center.
736 Cambridge Street, Brighton, MA.02135
Department of Internal Medicine; Observer 03/2003- 12/2003

Laurence General Hospital,
1 General Street, Lawrence, MA. 01842



Observer, shadowing an Attending Neurologist 11/2002- 03/2003

Hewlett Packard, Medical Division
,3000 MInuieman Rd, Andover MA, 01810
Medical Consultant for Latin America Field Operations 09/1997-12/1999

Navy Hospital Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo

Colcgiales ainic

AutSnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina
Critical Care Coordinator.

coordinator of Critical Care actualization courses.

Cllnlca Modeto Los Cedros.
San Justo, Provincia de Buenos Aires, Argentina
Chief, Intensive Care Unit
Clinic and administrative Management of the Unit. 07/1990-06/1991

NephroioglcMedlcal.Center Oeste.
Ciudadela, Provincia de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Attending Physician, Hemodialysls Unit. 02/1987-08/1988

Navy Hospltal Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo
"f "0^ 351, audad Autdhoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina

Attending Physician,.Critical Care Unit. 07/1984-01/1992

Navy HospItal.Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo

nnrTp.^T""'' Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina,On call Physician, Coronary Care Unit. 01/84-071984

Baiterrica Clinic

Junca( 3002i Ciudad Autdnoma de BuenosrAlres, Argentina.
On call Physician, Critical Care Unlt.09/1980-12/1987

Residencies/Fellowships

Carltas Saint Elizabeth's Medical Center



Marvin Lope2 M.O; FACS, FRCSC.
Hackford Alan M.D.

University of Satyador
Post Graduate School of medicine

of School ' ="""162 Montaner MO, Dean

Carlos Ourahd Hospital
Cardiology Division
Diaz v^lez 5044, Cludad AuWnoma de Buenos Aires Argentina
artiology-lnternal Medicine, 03/1982-06/1984

Alberto Demartini MO. Professor German Strigler MO.

Ignacio PIrovjano Hospital
Monroe 355S, Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires ArffPnHn:^
Internal Medicine. 03/1981-02/1982 '
Professor Navarret MO. Professor Cottone MO, 03 /1981 - 02 / IBBI
City of Buenos Aires Municipality
CIty pf Buenos Aires Hospitals
Critical Care Units
Annual Course of theory and practice in Critical Care.

Roberto Padron MO. OVig^loiAs'fi" Msnendez MD.Professor

Publications/Presentations/Poster Sessions

the°ArreminrSwl«J 0^0110"^ "XA/ Annual Meeting of



Volunteer Experience

American Red Cross Nashua Gateway Chapter
28 Concord Street, Nashua, NH 03064H«,th and safety: CPR/AED for A.ults, Children., Infants and First Aid Instructor. 04-201:.

American Cancer Society
Collaborated with 2009 Annual Fund
2009 Supporter, NH.

Spanish HospltaJ,

■OncoTnl^ AutOnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina. 01209,  . ev apartment, Voluntary Physician 03/1980-07/1980
Spanish Hospital,
Belgrano 2975,-0
frhergency Room Volunteer, 03/1079-03/1980"e Buenos Aires, Argentina, 01209

Evita General Hospital,
Rto de Janeiro 1910, Lanus, Provlncia de Buenos Aires, Argentina
Emergency Room Volunteer. 09/1974-12/1974 ■
Or Jose Esteve* Psychiatric Hospitali

Aires, Argentina.

Hobbles & Interests

Travel
Reading fiction, honfictlon and-hlstofy
Theater
Cooking

language Fluency {other then English)
Spanish



Other Accomplishments.

ItZT'.TwZllT"" """ w »"■FLT Lifestyle Educator Certification. March 2011

r.::?: Sirirrxs'"'"
Ss»"o5m,g;r'
Fundamentals of instructor Training Certification 03/21/2011



C. Annmarie Maclsaac-Karmenter RNC

Professional Summary

Energetic and motivated Registered Nurse and leader dedicated to excellence in patient care, and fiscal accountability.
I am seeking a position that provides new challenges.

Skill Highlights

Excellent leadership abilities with tremendous level of patience
Comprehensive knowledge of finance and budget creation related to the nursing department
Sound understanding of the laws and regulations for health care organizations
Skilled in planning and implementing strategies to provide effective case management
Exceptional health care management skills

Experienced in hiring, training, managing, and evaluating staff
Excellent clinical supervisoiv skills'.
Ability to effectively rhanage patient care issues
Strong organizational and communication skills

Profident with multiple EMR platforms: EPIC, McKesson, Point Click Care. Sigma Care

Experience
National Healthcare Country Center
Newburyport MA
Director of Nursing' September 20140ctober 2015

Managed entire operations of the nursing department. .
Established and maintained standards of nursing practice for the department.
Handled administrative duties pertaining to patient care.
Plan and implement strategies for operational management.
Oversight of supply stock, needs, and budgets for the nursing department.
Maintained daily interaction with doctors, patients, residents and family members to Insure excellent care and communication.
Scheduled and nientored nursing staff and sanction their leaves and other benefits.
Participated in meetings for building center's policies and ensure implementation

Genesis Bedford Hills Center

Bedford, N H ' -
Assistant Director of Nursing April 2012-September 2014

Assist DON in managing clinical operations of the nursing department in a 147 bed long term and rehabilitation facility.
Supervise and mentor unit managers.- • >
Assist In recruiting, training and disciplining staff.
Timely screening of admissions and assessment of needs prior to admission.
Weekly wound rounds with APRN frorn wound center
Chairperson of fall committee. Developed and implemented "tell Huddle" as a way to decrease falls.
Scheduling and management of PPD for nursing staff.
Identify department issues and develop corrective actions, using audits to identify trending and implementing action plan

Genesis Bedford Hills Center

Bedford. N H . •
Unit Manager September 2009 to April 2012

Unit manager of 38 bed LTC and 36 bed Dementia Unit.
24>hour responsibility and accountability for all aspects of patient care.
Hiring, training and management of staff, including progressive discipline and performance reviews.
Achieved recognition for Improved quality of life for LTC residents incorporating "life event" activities.
Identified opportunities to maintain and improve functional level of residents by collaborating with interdisciplinary team.



Genesis RIdgewood Center
Bedford NH

Unit Manager TCU August 2008 to September 2009

24-hour responsibility and accountability for all aspects of patient care on a 50 bed skilled rehab
unit. ' . -
Reviewed potential admissions to the unit with Director of Nursing and Admissions
Director.

Work^ collaboratively with. Director of Nursing to identify and provide orientation and
continuing education for unit staff memt>ers.
Collaborated vsnth the interdisciplinary care team to provide comprehensive care.
Reviewed clinical records for completeness and accuracy as necessary.
Assessment of wounds and infections and submission of documentation and trending reports with plan of correction.

St Joseph Hospital
Nashua NH ■ ' .
Registered Nurse/ Charge Nurse August 2000 to August 2008

Delivered high-quality and compassionate treatment to patients with dementia and related
Diseases in an acute care setting.
Provided behavioral/emotional support and supervision for those with dementia, as well as assessment and treatment of
medical diagnoses. ' ^ .
Wound assessment and management, member of in house wound team.
Assist in recruiting, training and disciplining staff.
Member of ethics committee. ''

Discharge planning
Regional Dementia educator and trainer.

Education and Training

Prjnce Edward Island School of Nursing
Charlottetown, Prince Edv/ard island, Canada

Licenses

Registered Nurse, New Hampshire # 018970-21
Massachusetts # RN134444

ANCC Hospice and Palliative Care Certified

Certified Dementia Trainer

References

Available Upon Request



CONTRACTOR NAME

-  Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Peter Kelleher President & CEO $198,032 0% $0

Patricia Robitaille VP of Finance $150,000 0% $0

Jonathan Brown Clinical Director $130,000 0% $0

Graciella Silvia

Sironich-Kalkan

Medical Director $208,000 5% $10,400

Charlotte Maclsaac-

Parmenter

RN

1

$69,597 50% $34,798.50



j«ffirey A. Meyers
Commieeionor

Katja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9422 l-800-«S2-3345 Exl9422

Fix: 603-271-S431 TDD Access: I-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.ah.gov

June 29. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Abuse,
to enter into sole source agreements with the Vendors listed in the table below, to expand the program
infrastructure necessary to provide Medication Assisted Treatment services to individuals with opioid
use disorders, in an amount not to exceed $2,250,000 effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval, through June 30, 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Summary of Contracts

Vendor Name Vendor Location Amount of Contract

Manchester Community Health Center Manchester, NH $900,000
Harbor Homes Nashua, NH $1,350,000

Grand Total $2,250,000

Funding to support this request is available in State Fiscal Years 2016 and 2019 and is
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020, subject to the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability td'^^just amounts within the
budgets and to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office without
Governor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-92051010-69350000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH: BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL
MAT GRANT

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS CLASS TITLE JOB NUMBER AMOUNT

SFY 2018 102-500734 Contracts for Program Services 92056935 $750,000

SFY 2019 102-500734 Contracts for Program Services 92056935 $750,000

SFY 2020 102-500734 Contracts for Program Services 92056935 $750,000
1

Grand Total $2,250,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source due to the application process for a federal grant with the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, which required the state to identify and
secure agreements with these two qualified providers and to submit letters of commitment to this
project in advance of the grant being awarded to the Department, subject to Governor and Executive
Council approval.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

Page 2 of 2

Approval of these contracts will allow these agencies to build the program infrastructure
necessary to provide Medication Assisted Treatment services to approximately 950 residents with
opioid use disorders within three years, In the high need communities of Nashua and Manchester.
Medication Assisted Treatment utilizes medications in combination with behavioral health counseling
and care management services that have been demonstrated to be effective in addressing opioid use
disorders, Including improved engagement in treatment and a reduction in the use of opioids. The
federal grant funds will be used to hire and train qualified staff; develop policies, procedures and
workflow to deliver services; adapt electronic health records IT systems, provide outreach to
underserved individuals with opioid use disorders in the community; and evaluate the quality of the
Medication Assisted Treatment services. Contractors are required to partner with local specialty
substance use disorder and recovery support services agencies to facilitate their accessing any needed
services not provided by their organization. In addition to providing Medication Assisted Treatment
services the two contractors, Manchester Community Health Center and Hartwr Homes, vi/ill provide
services to meet their patients' overall healthcare needs, including any co-occurring mental health
disorders and or medical conditions, and will likewise refer patients to services not provided by their
agency or that are beyond the scope of work for these contracts.

The purpose for these federal funds is to reduce the incidence of untreated and under-treated
opioid use disorders by increasing the number of New Hampshire residents receiving integrated
Medication Assisted Treatment services, co-occurring disorder and medical primary care services in
Nashua and Manchester. The Contract requires both Vendors to serve approximate 950 patients by
June, 2020. Additionally, the performance measures in the Contract require the Vendors to retain 55%
of patients in integrated Medication Assisted Treatment sen/ices for at least six months and to have
least 45% of participating patients demonstrating a reduction in opioid use at six month follow-up.

Additionally, the attached Contract includes language that reserves the right to renew the
contract for up to one (1) additional year, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, these high risk, high need
individuals will lose this opportunity to receive critical, evidence-based treatment and recovery services,
putting them at greater risk of overdose which may result in death and diminishing their ability to be
productive family and community members. The State also would not be able to leverage federal funds
to address this critical need.

Area Served; Communities of Manchester and Nashua

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, Medication-assisted Treatment, MAT, Grant. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFD) #93.243, Federal Assistance Identification Number # FAINTI026741

In the event that Federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not t>e requested
to support these agreements.

Respectfully submitted.

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:
ey Meyers

Commissioner

The Departrnem of Health and Human Sanhces' Mission is to join communities and famiies
in providing (^3pof1urtAies for dliiens to achieve health end independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrstructure Expansion fSS-2Q18-BDAS-02-MATSE-021

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information thai is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Manchester Community Health Center
1.4 Contractor Address

145 Hollis Street

Manchester NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-935-5229

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-6935-102-500734

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$900,000.

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

hnb Mc-CfGcWn.^ffSidenflCEO
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of Xi VA .County of

On , before the undesigned officer, personally appeared the persoi\^^^j(nitifi94/)tt block,1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that in the capacity
Indicated in block 1.12.
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace ^ V ^ \ ̂

5  : COMMISSION \ ^

,3^, SWc 1 1
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace 9'^''^^

1.14 State Agency Signature

Date: 0/^° In
1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by the*N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnek^riSpp//c<36/e^ ' '

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

Ihln1.18 Approval by the GovemoryA Executive ̂(ouncil li/tipplicabie) 1 I f

By: On;
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (^'State"), engages
contractor identified In block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as Indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and In the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder In excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold ,
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identifi^ and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporate herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of liaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected'circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
Including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applic^le copyri^t laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, (he Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block i.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation vMi whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or offtclal, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive tennination of this
Agreement
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Defiiult"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or.condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice ̂ >ecifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days fix>m the d^e ofthe notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of E>efoutt and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of De^lt; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATVACCESS/CONFIOENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be Identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall rtot assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement withoih the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None ofthe Services shtJl be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
itxlemnify aitd hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties assert^ against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may. be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than Sl,000,000per occurrence and S2,(X)0,0()0
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering alt
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and Issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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Date



14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
Identified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certlficatefs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
-Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtificaie(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certiflcate<s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15. i By signing this agreement, the Contractor ̂ ees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation"i.
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N!H. ̂ A chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may.be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in fovor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

I

23. SEVERABILITY. in the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes ̂ e entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the ̂ rvices described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30,2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 and SPY 2020-2021 blennla.

2. Statement of Work
2.1. The Contractor shall expand their currently existing Medication Assisted

Treatment (MAT) services through the activities in this Agreement to serve
approximately 200 adults with opioid use disorders who are assessed to be
clinicaliy appropriate for MAT and who liveMork in the Greater Manchester area.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide MAT services with fidelity to federal, state, and bes\
practices recommendations as described In the 'Guidance Document on Best
Practices: Key Components for Delivering Community-Based Medication
Assisted Treatment Sen/ices for Opioid Use Disorders in NH' available at:

http://www.dhhs.nh.Qov/dct)cs/bdas/documents/matauidancedoc.Ddf

2.3. The Contractor shall Identify infrastructure needs and conduct activities
necessary to increase and enhance capacity to implement MAT services as
follows, but not limited to:

2.3.1. Recruit and hire additional staffing.

i  2.3.2. Make Modifications to the electronic health record (EHR) system.

2.3.3. Provide training for staff in an effort to initiate or expand current office
based opioid treatment (OBOT) programs that deliver medication
assisted treatment with approved medications including buprenorphine
and naltrexone and to refer patients for treatment With methadone.

2.4. The Contractor shall establish a tearn comprised of current or newly-recruited
staff to deliver MAT services, with sufficient staff to provide three core roles:

2.4.1. Medical oversight and prescribing.

2.4.2. Behavioral health counseling.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials 1^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

2.4.3. Care coordination, which includes but is not limited to coordinating
induction, administering urine screens and monitoring results, ensuring
collaboration of providers, and assisting with accessing social services.

2.5. The Contractor shall develop collaborative relationships with external partners to
provide additional MAT services not available through the Contractor's agency,
which shall include, but not be limited to;

2.5.1. MATservices with Methadone.

2.5.2. Intensive levels of Beh^loral Health counseling not available at their
agency.

2.5.3. Ancillary norvclinical recovery support services that reduce barriers to a
client's participation in treatment or recovery, which may include, but not
be limited to, peer recovery support services; transportation, child care,
and employment services.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure the availability of initial and on-going training and
resources to all staff to include buprenorphine waiver training for interested
physicians, nurse practitioners, and physician assistants. The Contractor shall
develop a plan for Department approval to train and engage appropriate staff.

2.7. The Contractor must participate in training and technical assistance activities as
directed by the Department, including but not limited to the Community of
Practice for MAT, which may include project-specific trainings, quarterly web-
based discussions, on-site te^nlcal assistance visits and ad hoc communication
with expert consultants on MAT clinical care topics such as Hepatitis C Virus
(HCV) and Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) prevention, diversion risk
mitigation and other relevant issues.

2.8. The Contractor shall develop policies and practices consistent with the Guidance
Docurhent related to, but not limited to:

)

2.8.1. Evaluation and medical exam in order to obtain information to verify that
patients meet criteria for opioid use disorders and are appropriate for
MAT level of care, and determine the appropriate medication.

2.8.2. Induction procedures.

2.8.3. Integration of behavioral health counseling.

2.8.4. Documentation of MAT services.

2.8.5. Billing procedures.

2.8.6. Urine dmg testing.

2.8.7. Discharge from MAT services.

2.9. The Contractor shall develop a workflow to provide patients with appropriate
medical oversight for improved access and retention with MAT services by
ensuring the following, which shall include but not t>e limited to:

2.9.1. Prescribing.

2.9.2. Diversion prevention activities.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials .
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New Hampshire [)epartment of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

2.9.3. Counseling.

2.9.4. Care coordination.

2.9.5; Other appropriate ancillary services.

2.10. The Contractor shall utilize the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP) for
each prescription.

2.11. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with confidentiality requirements, which
shall include, but not be limited to:

2.11.1. Federal and state laws;

2.11.2. HIPAA Privacy Rule; and

2.11.3. 42 C.F.R. Part 2.

2.12. The Contractor shall provide timely communication among the patient,
prescriber, counselor, care coordinator, and external providers.

2.13. The Contractor shall modify their EHR and clinical work flow to ensure required
processes and data collection.

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the GPRA data collection tool during face-to-face
patient interviews at intake. 6 month follow-up and at discharge from MAT
senrices. In order to obtain high collection rates, incentives may be offered to
patients for their time In completing the 6 month follow-up and discharge
Interviews.

2.15. The Contractor shall ensure meaningful Input of consumers in program
assessment, planning. Implementation and improvement.

2.16. The Contractor shall use data to support quality Improvement, using TA as.
needed.

2.17. The Contractor shall maintain the Infrastructure necessary to achieve the goals of
MAT~ Expansion, to meet the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Sen/ices
Administration (SAMHSA) Medication Assisted Treatment Grant requirements
and to deliver effective care to patients with an Opiold Use Disorder/Co-
Occurring Disorder OUD/COD.

2.18. The Contractor shall communicate with the Continuum of Care Facllitator(s)
regarding their service's role In the development of a resiliency and recovery
oriented system of care (RROSC) in their region(s).

2.19. The Contractor shall engage in evaluation activities, as directed by the
Department, including data collection and reporting in Section 3.

2.20. The Contractorshall develop and implement outreach activities about MAT and
wrap around services to persons with Opioid Use Disorders (OUDs), in
accordance with a Department approved outreach plan designed to inform the
high-risk population and engage ̂ em In services. Outreach materials, including
but not limited to brochures, posters, and social media, will be developed and
disseminated using Technical Assistance as needed. These materials must be
culturally appropriate, follow the Departments Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Standards (CLAS), and be approved by the Department.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials y —
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

2.21. The Contractor shall develop and implement a process to evaluate and report on
patient satisfaction with the MAT services. The Contractor shall submit for
Department approval the evaluation process.

2.22. The Contractor shall participate In all meetings, trainings and site visits required
by SAMHSA and the Department.

2.23. The Contractor shall submit for Department approval within the timeline defined
In Section 4.3 a sustalnablllty plan to continue to provide medication assisted
treatment services .beyond the completion date of the contract.

3. Work Plan

3.1. The Contractor shall submit for Department approval within the timeline defined
In Section 5.2 a work plan describing the process for ensuring the completion all
aspects of the Scope of Services as listed in this Agreement. The Contractor
shall include in the work plan;

3.1.1. Activities and plans describing how the Contractor will complete the
scope of work.

3.1.2. Target number of patients to be served.

3.1.3. Deliverables

3.1.4. Due Dates

3.2. The Contractor shall develop an outreach plan designed to inform persons with
OUDs atx)ut availabie MAT and wrap around services and to engage them in
these services. This outreach plan shall be submitted with the work plan in
Section 3.1.

3.3. The Contractor shall participate in project status meetings as scheduled by the
Department to discuss progress and changes to the work plan.

3.4. The Contractor shall Inform the Department within five business days any issues
that affect the performance of the contract. The Contractor shall recommend
solutions to resolve the issues.

4. Reporting
4.1. The Contractor will collect, manage and report data using the web-t>ased tool

identified by SAMHSA in accordance with the Government Performance and
Results Modernization Act of 2010 (GPRA). GPRA data shall be collected from
each patient at 3 points during their treatment, as required by SAMHSA.

i

4.2. In addition to the requirements in Section 3.1, The Contractor shall provide
quarterly status reports based on work plan to include, but not be limited to:

4.2.1. Work plan progress against the actual work plan activities in Section
3.1.1 through 3.1.4.

4.2.2. Staff (existing and newly hired) retained to support MAT.

4.2.3. Number of physicians, nurse practitioners, and physician assistants
waivered to prescribe buprenorphlne.

4.2.4. Policies and practices established.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials /
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4.2.5. Changes made to the initial wodc plan.

4.2.6. Training and technical assistance needed.

4.2.7. Numt)er of patients receiving MAT In the reporting quarter, year to date
and contract period to date.

4.2.8. Wait times, as indicated by number of days from initial contact to the
initiation/delivery of services.

4.2.9. Patient satisfaction.

4.2.10. Numljer of patients referred to Opiate Treatment Programs for MAT with
methadone.

4.2.11. Outreach activities.

4.2.12. Other progress to date.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide, to the Department within forty-five (45) twjsiness
days prior to the Contract completion date in General Provisions P-37 Block 1.7,
a sustalnabilrty plan as described in Section 2.23 to continue to provide
medication assisted treatment services beyond the completion date of the
contract, subject to approval by the Department.

4.4. The Contractor shall provide a final report to the Department within forty-five (45)
business days from the Contract completion date in Ger)eral Provisions P-37
Block 1.7. The Contractor shall include in the final report the following information
based on the woric plan, but shall not be limited to:

4.4.1. Work plan progress against the actual work plan activities in Section
3.1.1 through 3.1.4.

4.4.2. Staff (existing and newly hired) retained to support MAT.

4.4.3. Number of physicians, nurse practitioners, and physician assistants
waivered to prescribe buprenorphine. ^

4.4.4. Policies and practices established.

4.4.5. Outreach activities completed.

4.4.6. Number of patients receiving MAT prior to contract as compared to the
number of patients receiving MAT during the contract peri<^, including
the following information, but not limited to:

4.4.6.1. Demographic (gender, age, race, ethnicity).

4.4.6.2. Outcome data (as directed by the Department).

4.4.6.3. Patient satisfaction.

4.4.7. Description of challenges encountered and action taken.

4.4.8. Other progress to date as required by the Department.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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5. Deliverables
5.1. The Contractor shall provide medication assisted treatment services as in

Section 2.1 in accordance with the work plan.

5.2. The Contractor shall submit a work plan as outlined in Section 3 for the
Department's review and approval within forty-five (45) business days of the
contract's effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports according to Section 4.2.

5.4. The Contractor shall submit a final report within forty-five (45) business days of
termination of the contract according to Section 4.3.

6. Perfonnance Measures
6.1. The Contractor shall meet evaluatron measures required by SAMHSA. the

Department and the Department's contracted Evalualor for the SAMHSA MAT
grant/project.

6.1.1. The Contractor shall gather data and monitor performance as defined in
Section 6.1.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with performance measures
generated through GPRA reporting.

6.2.1. The Contractor shall enter GPRA data according to the federal
requirements.

6.3. The Contractor's performance for providing MAT services in this contract will be
measured by adherence to the guidance document in Section 2.2. and by the
number and percentage of patients durir^ the reporting quarter, year to date, and
total contract penod, who receive the following services:

6.3.1. Number of patients with OUDs receiving integrated MAT.

6.3.2. Receiving medical oversight, including prescribing or administration of
medication.

6.3.3. Receiving care coordination/case management

6.3.4. Receiving Behavioral health counseling.

6.3.5. Receiving peer recovery support services.

6.4. The Contractor shall retain 55% of participating patients in integrated MAT
services for at least 6 months.

6.5. The Contractor shall have 45% of particlpatir>g patients with reduced opioid use
at 6 month follow up. "Reduced opioid use" means using less illicit opioids at 6
month follow-up than amount used prior to initiating treatment.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P*37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract Is funded with funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

Administration. Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) Grant. CFDA #93.243 FAiN TI026741. 100%
Federal Funds

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service In compliance with funding
requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's cun-ent
and/or future funding.

2) The Contractor shall use and apply ail contract funds for authorized direct and Indirect costs to provide services
in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in accordance with Budgets Exhibit 6-1, Exhibit B-2 and Exhibit B-3.

3) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursernent basis for allowable costs and expenses incurred in the
fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved Budgets Exhibit B-1, Exhibit
B-2 and, Exhibit B-3.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice using forms provided by the Department, by the twentieth working
day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in
the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in
order to initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to
Department programs and services pursuant to this Agreement,

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice, for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement subsequent to approval of the submitted
invoice and If sufficient funds are available.

2.4. The Contractor shall submK invoices for services outlined in Exhibit A. Scope of Services in accordance
'  with budget tine items in Exhibit B-3, Budget preferably by e-mail on Department approved Invoices to:

Program Manager
Division for Behavioral Health

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301
Lindy.keller@dhhs.nh.gov

2.5. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, block 1.7.

4) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this Contract may be
withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal law, rule or regul^ion
applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in accordance with the
terms and cofKlltlons of this Agreement.

5) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line items in Budget Exhibit B-1. Exhibit B-2 and Exhibit B-3 within the price limitation, and to adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties ftpd may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit B Contractof inftialt Y'
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center •

Medication Assisted Treatment Services
Budget Request for: infrastructure Expansion

Contract Name

Budget Period: SPY 2018: G&C approval through June 30.2018

1. Total Salary/Waoes $ 286.862.00 $ s 288,662.00
2. Employee Benefits $ - $ $ .

3. Consultants $ 2.000.00 $ $ 2,000.00
4. Equipment: S - $ $ .

Rental $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $
Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies: $ $ $
Educational $ $ $
1 ah $ - $ $ _

Pharmacy $ 2.000.00 $ $ 2.000.00
Medical $ 1,000.00 $ $ 1,000.00
Office $ 138.00 $ $ 138.00

6. Travel $ 500.00 $ $ 500.00

7. Occupancy $ -  • $ $ .  •

8. Current Expenses $ $ $
Telephone $ $ $
Postage $ $ $

Subscriptions $ $ $
Audit and Legal $ $ $
insurance $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ $ _

11. Staff Education and Training $ 2,000.00 $ $ 2,000.00
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ $ .

13. Other (specific details mandatory): s - $ $ -

14. EMR/HER Licenses $ 1.000.00 $ $ 1,000.00
15. EMR modifications to facilitate data $ 2,500.00 $ $ 2,500.00

$ - $ $ .

$ $ $
$ Li -  1 $

TOTAL IT 1= 1"mmm
Indirect As A Percent of Direct omk

Exhibit B-1
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Exhibit B-2 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

Medication Assisted Treatment Services
Budget Request for. Infrastructure Expansion

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2019: July 1. 2018 through June 30. 2019

.

1  ij

1. loiat {>aiaryrwag8s > 293.014.00 $ $ 293,014.00
2. Employee Benefits $ . $ $ .

3. Consultants $ 2,000.00 $ s 2,000.00
4. Equipment $ - $ $ .

Rental $ $ $
Repair and Maintenance $ $ $
Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies: $ $ $
Educational $ $ $
Lab $ $ .

Phamiacy $ 1.000.00 $ $ 1.000.00
Medical $ 1,000.00 $ $ 1,000.00
Office $ ■ $ $ .

6. Travel $ 500.00 $ $ 500.00
7. Occupancy $ - $ $ .

8. Current Expenses $ $ $
Telephone $ $ $
Postage $ $ $
Subscriptions $ $ $
Audit and Legal $ $ $
Insurance $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ - $ $ -

10. MarKeting/Communications $ 4B6.00 $ $ 486.00
11. Staff Education and Training $ 2.000.00 $ $ 2.000.00
12. Sutxxntracts/Agreements $ - $ $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $
$ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $
$ $ $
$ -  1$ L$^ -

TOTAL t; 3OO,QOO.0n
A 0:s A Percent of Dire^ 0%

Exhibrt B-2
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Exhibit B-3 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

Medication Assisted Treatment Services
Budget Request for Infrastructure Expansion

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2020: July 1,2019 through June 30,2020

$ 293,014.00 s 293,014.001. Total Salary/Wages

2. Employee Benefits

3. Consultants

4. Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation
5. Supplies:

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

8. Current Expenses

Telephone
Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses
9. Software

10. Marketing/Communications

11. Staff Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

TOTAL

2,000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00

500.00

486.00

S  2,000.00

%  300.066.60 If

2,000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00

500.00

486.00

2,000.00

1—U6,660.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct w

Exhibit B-3 Budget
Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibilrty
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manrter of Determination: Eligibility detemiinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall Include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall fumish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereurtder, as wed as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a feir hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicaht shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determir>ed that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, offi^rs, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, diat no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ir)eligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the-Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2.' Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursemerrt in

excess of costs;

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in v^ich event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all.funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIAUTY;

8. Maintenance of Records: in addition to the eligbility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: iMoks, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incuned by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordar>ce vrith accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
prt^riy reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to irtclude, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and origirial evidertce of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributior». labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
P^>artment.

8.2. Statical Records: Statistical, enrollment attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period. whK^ records shall include all records of application and
^igibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profrt Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accountir^ Office (GAO standards) as
tf)ey pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Cr^ract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excer^ ar>d transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or cdiected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, ttiat pursuant to state taws and the regulatiorts of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such infomiation. disclosure may be made to
public officiats requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
ttie use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the adrninlstration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibrted except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph.shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the foUowinq
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as stall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals ar>d objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department

12. Cornpletion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of ttie
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or

/  |urviw the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right at Its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from tfm Contractor.

13. Cr^lts: AH dowments, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
dunng or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the fbllowina
statement: ^
13.1. The preparation of this (report, doci^ent etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State

of New Hampshire, Departmerti of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other ftirxting sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior ̂ proval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, produclbn.
distnbution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures; resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
pMters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
poor wntten approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders'and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursu^ to laws wftich shall impow an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the fecility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
l»nnit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the p^onmance of the said services
the extractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
rondrtions of each such license or permit. In conr>ection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
(^pfy y^h all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marsha! and
the local fire protection agency, arxt shall be in conformance \wth local building and zoning codes by
laws and regulations. 9 . J

16. ̂ uai Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Emptoyment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $560,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 o^

oearnA
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services

Exhibit C

more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Fonn to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Trilws, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdp)/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited Engtish Proficleiicy (t-EP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Titie VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

COMTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTIEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the functlon(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that spoyfies activities and reporting
responsft>iiities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the sut>contractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is resportsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective sut)Contractor'8 abflity to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
resportsfoilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's perforrnance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor tnitlats '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhib'it C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedute identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DERNITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of e)q>ense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FIfWNCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the ftnancial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each sen/ice to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTT^CTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Service containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

L-
EjcNW C - Special Provisions Contractor Initiais
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Condrtional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ail obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contirigent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal (egislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provitbd In Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in virtrale or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or availat>le funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold paymertt until such furids become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor r>otice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account Into the
Account(8) identified in bl^ 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account. In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract Termiriation, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written noticO that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
temiination. develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement Including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 the Contractor shall fully co(^>erate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication arto revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications in Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

I

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to one additional year, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services arto approval by the Governor
and Executive Council.

ExTiibrt C-1 - Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Inftlab.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^=REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foDowing Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part M of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to awjardi that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sutxontractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant durir\g the federal ftscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment. Contrai^ors using this form should
send K to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manu^dure, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the adions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse vblations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee wHI
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her convldlon for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
convidion;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving adual notice of such convidion.
Employers of convided employees must provide notice, Induding position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant adivity the convided employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
Woflrplace Reqiirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any empbyee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the site(8) for the perfonnance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

a
Data ' Namb: McCftcVxA

IC to

Extiblt O-Ceftiflcation regarding Drug Free Contractor Inldah
Workplace Reqiirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sectloris 1.11
and 1.12oftheGeneralProvlslonsexecutethefollowjngCertlficatlon:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered);
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A

'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medlcald Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or ernployee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by speciific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete artd submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sut>-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
bans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a rnaterial representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certific^ion is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shall be su^ect to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000'and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: C.orv><niooi-Ui

Name: ^ M c
™  C60

^  Exhibit E - Ceitiflcation Regarding Lobi>ying Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certlficatton set out below.

2. The inanity of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
e)q)lanatlon of why it canrxJt provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the-prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person fiwn participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
wtYom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction,' "debarred,' "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
trar^action.* 'participant,* 'person,"primary covered transaction," "prindpal," "proposal," ar>d
•voluntarily excluded,' as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shad not kr>owir>gly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Irteligible. or voluntarily excluded
f

7.

rom participation in th s covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary partk^jit further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
dause titled 'Certification Regardif^ Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibilrty and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covert transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
tower tier covered transaction that it is not detorred, suspertoed, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erTor>eous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Ifothing contained in the forgoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to rertoer In good faith the certification required by this dause. The knowledge and

c

Exhibit P - Certiflcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contrador Iniliats
And Other Responsibility Matters /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normalty possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transactlori or a contract under a put>lic transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of erTit>ez^ment, theft, forgery, bribery, febification or destruction of
records, making fabe statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have opt within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
treinsactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defoult

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently d^rred, suspended, proposed for debarment declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prosp^ve lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, siich

prospective participant shall atta^ an explanation to thb proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include thb clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in afl lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

MancV>ts4£T Comr>iKyi>-HA
Contractor Name:

[/hil'i
Date* Name:/V^fl^>Ac C<
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANtZATtONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identrfied in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the'following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrarrtees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) virtiich prohibits
recipierrts of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal fending under this
statute are prohibited frixn discriminating, either in employn>ent practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Em^yment Opportunity Plan requirements;

-the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal finar^ctal
asststar^ce from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Airiendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections6106-07), which prohiits discrimination on the
basis of age in pn^rams or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice R^ulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Empioymertt Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for farth-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and pdicy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. frt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistlebiower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancemertt of Contract Employee Whistlebiower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or yiolation of the certification shall be grounds for
susperuion of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agef>cy makes a firxJing of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

1

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisbns
indicated at>ove.

Contractor Name: Vka

lefrifn
Date ' Nani*feT^'rfi& aacC<6icV\<v\-.

)C60
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smd^ing not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, ban. or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of fadlities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment Faflure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Corrtractof's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Co'rv\ivioAi\^
Contractor Name:

Name:

™-^Wdc»TV|C£0
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Heaith Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Tttle 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record sef
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

6- "Data Aooregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TItleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

li- "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k- "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by ̂
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

^'2014 Exhibit I Contractof IrVtiais
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Exhibit I

I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgr>ee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information urujsable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized irnJivlduals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manrier that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business..Associate may use ordisdose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Assodate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. t>elow; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Assodate must obtain, prior to making any such disdosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party thiat such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disdosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disdosed to the third party; and (il) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Assodate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security; and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Assodate shall not, unless such disdosure is reasonably necessary to
provide senrices under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disdose any PHI in response to a
request for disdosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifyir>g
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to obj^ to the disdosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business ̂

3^2014 ExNbttI Contractor Initlats
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions, and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObHqatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or .
received by the Business Associate on l)ehalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreenient, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to retum or destroy the PHI as provided'under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who wiD be receiving PHI

3^2014 ExMbJtl Contractof Initlab \AJ '
Heafth Insurance Portability Act /
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's comfriiance with the terms of the Agreement

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Busine^ As^ciate shall provide access to PHI in a Design^ed Record Set to the
Covert.Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance wrth 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
indlviduars request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ^

3/2014 ExNbitI Contractor .
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obllaatlcns of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
u^ or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI rhay be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notily Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the startdard terms and conditions (P-37} of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit t. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not othenvise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take isuch action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 ExNUH Contrador InKi
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SeqreQatlon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Sun/lval. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Auth^zed Representative

Trtle of Authorized Representative

Date

0^1'^^) \n

Name of the Contractor ^

Si^afure of Authorized Representative

y^f\s McCxotVifn
Name of Authorized Representative

1 r Eo
Authorized ReoreTitle of Authorized Representative

3/2014 £xhibill
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the avrard.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agenby ,
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and r\ames of the top five executives if;

10.1. More tttan 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and '

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendmeiit is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provtsiorts agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward arKl Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certi^tion;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Heal^ and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name;

Dattf Nam^^i^ig^

Ceo

ExhibHJ-Certtflcation Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initiats
AccountaMtty And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compfiance >
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  The DUNS numt>er for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts. sut>contracts. loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
busing or organization through periodic repohs filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78io(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as fdlows:

Nartie:

Name:

Name;

Name:

h4ame:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUOHHSni0713

EjMbit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Complance
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Exhibit K

DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confidential Information: In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, the Department's Confidentiaj information includes any and all Information own^ or managed by the
State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of virhich collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is govemed by state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Perronal Health Information (PHI), Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), Federal Tax Information (FTI),
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information.

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department cor^fidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contract^ services. Minimum expectations include:

2.1. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the
information lifecycle. where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect transmit, or
. store Department confidential information where applicat>te.

2.3. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops, USB
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet using current industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.4. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can
impact State of NH systems and/or Departmerrt confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Cfopartment confidential information

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notification arxJ incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

V

2.6:1.'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Regulations. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer
Security Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Put}lication 600-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications will be sent to the following email addresses:

2.6.1.1. DHHSChieflnformationOfficer@dhhs.nh.Qov

2.6.1.2. DHHSInfomiationSecuritvOffice@dhhs.nh.QQv

2.7. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential Informafion on its systems (or its sub-contractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
termination; and will obtain written certificatton for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
vendor or any sut)contractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.
When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data stiall be rendered
unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure

ExWWt K - DHHS Information Security Requirementa Contractor
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deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor will
document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the
Department upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data
has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction.

2.8. If the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vertdor will maintain a program of an Internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum mateh those for the vendor, including breach ratification requirements.

3. The vendor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Hampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department sy8tem(8). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103, the vendor will
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vutr>erabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the en^ement between the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stkes unless prior express written consent is otXained from
tee appropriate authorized data owr>er or leadership memt)er vrithin the Department.

ItErfiiblt K - WHS Information Security Requirement! Contractor Inltiai!
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services infrastructure Expansion Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion Contract

This 1*' Amendment to the Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this 9*^ day of July, 2018, is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Manchester Community Health Center (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a
non-profit corporation with a place of business at 145 Holiis Street Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 2, 2017, (Item #10A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the price limitation and terms
and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to, increase the price limitation, adding additional staff in order to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,012,375.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9330.

4. Exhibit A, Provisions Applicable to All Services, Section 1.3 to read:

1.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services
provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been
received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 biennia.

5. Exhibit A, Statement of Work, Section 2.24 through 2.28 to read:

2.24 The Contractor shall expand integrated MAT service delivery in Nashua/Manchester through
June 30, 2020.

2.25 The Contractor shall develop a formalized agreement between the FQHC and at least one
local hospital to facilitate direct referrals to on-going treatment and recovery supports provided
by the FQHC or other agencies.

2.26 The Contractor shall facilitate care coordination' and referral agreements between
Nashua/Manchester Safe Stations to ongoing treatment and recovery supports provided by
the FQHC or other agencies

Manchester Community Health Center Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services infrastructure Expansion Contract

2.27 The Contractor shall ensure all patients who are eligible for supplemental care coordination
who enroll in treatment but do not attend a subsequent appointment receive a minimum of one
(1) outreach encounter within seven (7) calendar days of the missed appointment.

2.28 The Contractor shall develop sustainable, adequate reimbursement mechanisms for patient-
centered, effective, integrated MAT service delivery.

6. Add Exhibit B-4. Amendment#! SPY 2019 Supplemental Budget Sheet.

7. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Manchester Community Health Center Amendment #1
SS-2018-BDAS-02-MATSE-02 Page 2 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion Contract

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Katja S. Fox:
Director:

&

Date

Mancheste^Community Health Center

Name;

Title: d^O

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

County ofState of OrO
on

personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactdri
signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

rtdrily proven to
before the undersigned officer,
be the person whose name is

rr^

Signature ofyNolary Public or^stice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires: ■'hih-x

lyrmON J. KURTIAK, Notary Public
Slats of New Hampahira

My Commission Expires January 16,2022

Manchester Community Health Center
SS-2018-BDAS-02.MATSE-02

Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services infrastructure Expansion Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

ilish
Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Go
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of mee

Name:

Title:

r and Executive Council of the State

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Manchester Community Health Center
SS-2018-BDAS-02-MATSE-02
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected networ1< (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

r
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known.as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its

sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or othenvise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and. access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center sen/ices necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conftdential Information received under this Contract and individually

identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

t
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MANCHESTER COMMUNITY

HEALTH CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 07,

1992. 1 further certify, that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 17S11S

Certificate Number: 0004082768

m%

u.

^3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 10th day of April A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Catherine A. Marsellos . do
hereby certify that;

1. I am the duly elected Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Manchester Community
Health Center .

2. The following are true copies of two Resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of
Directors held on September 4. 2018 :

RESOLVED: That this Corporation entered into contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
acting through its Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED: That the President/CEO is hereby
authorized on behalf of this Corporation to enter into the said contracts with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments,
revisions, or modifications thereto, as she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and
effect as of the 4'^ day of September 2018.

4. Kris McCracken is the duly elected President/CEO of the
Corporation.

Name: Caiherine'A. Marsellos

Title: Secretary

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE )
: SS

COUNTY OF MERRIMACK )

On this day of , 2018, before me, the undersigned officer,
personally appeared Catherine A. Marsellos, known to me or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged herself to be a
duly authorized representative of the Board of Directors of the Manchester Community Health
Center, and that she, in this capacity, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing
instrument for the purposes therein contained.

. fotary PubJi€/Justice of the Peace
My Comm^ion Expires: JbOAo
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MANCCOM-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LMICHALS

DATE (MNVDD/YYYY)

11/01/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER License#AGR8150
Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

c2Q;act Lorraine Mlchals, CIC

rA/c^No. Exth (603) 716-2362 no1;(603) 622-2854
li^li^clniichals^clarklnsurance.com

INSURERfSl AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Selective Insurance Co of South Carolina 19259

INSURED

Manchester Community Health Center MCHC
145 Hollls Street

Manchester. NH 03101

INSURER B

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSIIRPR P

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL SUBR
wvn POUCY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
IMM/DD/YYYYI

POUCY EXP
IMM/nnfYYYVl UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UA8ILITY

)E [ X 1 OCCUR S2291045-00 11/01/2017 11/01/2018

EACH OCCURRFNCE
^  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED ^  300,000

MED EXP (Anv one oeraoni
^  5,000

PFRSONAl A ADV INJURY
J  1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GFNFRAI AGGRFGATE
J  3,000,000

POLICY 1 1 JliSf LAJ LOC
OTHER:

PRODI ir.T.S - COMP/OP AGG
,  3,000,000

A AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

32291045-00 11/01/2017 11/01/2018

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT J  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

HEDULED
rros

ffoiw

BODILY INJURY IPer bersonl s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

AU^ ONLY

X
sc
Al BODIl Y INJURY fPer acddenll s

X X
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddentT s

s

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE S2291045-00 11/01/2017 11/01/2018

EACH OCCURRENCE
^  4,000,000

AGGREGATE
,  4,000,000

DED X RETENTIONS 0 s

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY ^ / n
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE rTTI

K yet. deacriM under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

HI A

WC9057737.00 11/01/2017 11/01/2018

y PER OTH-
* STATUTF FR

Fl FACHACCIDENT
j  500,000

F I mSFASE - EA EMPLOYE!
,  500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POUCY LIMIT
j  500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramtrks Schwiula, may b« attaehad If mora apaca la raqulrad)

NH Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) <S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



MANCHESTER

comMHKPty
HEALTH CENTER

hdUitoni ViM.OYVcLvu^Core/Vcduejr'

MUivOtX/

To improve the health and well-being of our patients and the communities

we serve by leading the effort to eliminate health disparities by

providing exceptional primary and preventive healthcare and support

services which are accessible to all.

VUCoYV

MCHC will become the provider of choice for comprehensive primary health
care by achieving the triple aim of better health outcomes, better patient
care, and lowered costs through using innovative care models and strong

community partnerships. MCHC will meet our mission by using evidence-based
care that is patient-centered, engages families, removes barriers, and

promotes well-being and healthy lifestyles through patient empowerment and
education.

Care^Vcdue^

We will promote wellness, provide exceptional care, and offer outstanding

services so that our patients achieve and maintain their best possible

health. We will do this through fostering an environment of respect,

integrity and caring for all stakeholders in our organization.

ADOPTED: 01/28/2014
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Manchester Community Health Center

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manchester Community Health Center,
which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Sangor, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Charleston, VW • Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

Manchester Community Health Center
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Manchester Community Health Center as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the
results of its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

i  C—

Portland, Maine

December 6, 2017



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Balance Sheets

June 30, 2017 and 2016

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, less allov\rance for uncollectible

accounts of $1,702,394 in 2017 and $1,391,757 in 2016
Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Investment in limited liability company

Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current maturities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2017 2016

$  671,890 $ 1,024,773

2,058,763
942,811

131.702

3,805,166

20,298

4.362.418

2,055,686
566,395

120.052

3,766,906

16.203

150,000

3.796.129

$ 8.187.882 S 7.729.238

$  810,000 $
1,057,214 484,037
1,059,280

52.316

2,978,810

1.206.475

4.185.285

3,091,080
810.159
101.358

934,203

51.049

1,469,289

1.258.264

2.727.553

4,318,627
581,700

101.358

4.002.597 5.001.685

$ 8.187.882 $ 7.729.238

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-



MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Grants and contracts

Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits

Other operating expense
Depreciation

Interest expense

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss) income

Other revenues and gains
Contributions

Investment income

Equity in earnings from limited liability company

Total other revenues and gains

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets

$ 9,734,445 $ 9,284,028
f1.687.4391 f1.098.0741

8,047,006 8,185,954

6,832,729

104,554
716.090

6,397,842

154,857
539.958

15.700.379 15.278.611

12,556,077 10,658,870
4,579,067 4,221,587

311.809

38.875

336,129
54.071

17.525.344 15.231.141

f1.824.9651 47.470

194,463
1,166

4.095

199.724

(1.625,241)

69,001
328.693

209,687
984

15.703

226.374

273,844

79,924

$f1.227.547) $ 353.768

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30. 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Unrestricted net assets

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

$(1,625,241)
69,001
328.693

$  273,844
79,924

(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets (1.227.547) 353.768

Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions

Net assets released from restriction for operations
Net assets released from restriction for capital acquisition

1,273,242
(716,090)
(328.693)

545.984

(539,958)

Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 228.459 6.026

Change in net assets (999,088) 359,794

Net assets, beginning of year 5.001.685 4.641.891

Net assets, end of year $ 4.002.597 $ 5.001.685

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  (999,088) $ 359,794

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash (used)
provided by operating activities

Provision for bad debts 1,687,439 1,098,074

Depreciation 336,129 311,809

Equity in earnings from limited liability company (4,095) (15,703)

Contributions and grants for long-term purposes (726,960) (79,924)
Increase in the following assets

Patient accounts receivable (1,690,516) (1,219,342)
Grants and other receivables (376,416) (73,969)

Prepaid expenses (11,650) (24,094)

Increase in the following liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 573,177 157,242

Accrued payroll and related expenses 125.077 312.467

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (1.086.903) 826.354

Cash flows from investing activities
Release of (increase in) board-designated reserves 150,000 (75,000)
Capital expenditures (902.418) (215.153)

Net cash used by investing activities (752.418) (290.153)

Cash flows from financing activities
Contributions and grants for long-term purposes 726,960 79,924

Proceeds from line of credit 920,000 -

Payments on line of credit (110,000) -

Payments on long-term debt (50.522) (48.003)

Net cash provided by financing activities 1.486.438 31.921

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (352,883) 568,122

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1.024.773 456.651

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year £  671.890 $ 1.024.773

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $  54,071 $ 38,875

Capital expenditures in accounts payable 321,590 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Manchester Community Health Center (the Organization) is a non-stock, not-for-profit corporation
organized in New Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC)
providing high-quality, comprehensive family oriented primary healthcare services which meet the
needs of a diverse community, regardless of age, ethnicity or income.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a
public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax. positions that require
adjustment to the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles generally requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Eoulvalents

Cash and cash equivalents exclude amounts whose use is limited by Board designation.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectibility of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past history and identifies trends for each individual payer. In addition, balances in excess of
one year are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews data about revenue in evaluating the
sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable
collection efforts have been exhausted are applied against the allowance for uncollectible
accounts.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

2017 2016

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,391,757 $ 608,028
Provision 1,687,439 1,098,074
Write-offs M.376.802) (314.345)

Balance, end of year $ 1,702,394 $ 1,391,757

The increase in provision and write-offs is primarily the result of the regulatory environment related
to challenges with credentialing of providers and timely filing limits imposed by managed care
companies.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

Investment In Limited Liability Company

The Organization is one of eight partners who each made a capital contribution of $500 to Primary
Health Care Partners, LLC (PHCP) during 2015. The Organization's investment in PHCP is
reported using the equity method and the investment amounted to $20,298 and $16,203 at June
30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use consist of cash and cash equivalents and represent assets designated by
the board for future capital needs.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-line
method.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted net
assets and excluded from the (deficit) excess of revenue over expenses unless explicit donor
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit
restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must
be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as temporarily restricted net assets. Absent
explicit continuing donor stipulations, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the
donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2017 and 2016

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets
I

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions and grants for which donor-imposed
restrictions have not been met. Assets are released from restrictions as expenditures are made in
line with restrictions called for under the terms of the donor. Restricted grants received for capital
acquisitions are reported as temporarily restricted net assets in the period received, and
expirations of those donor restrictions are reported when the acquired long-lived assets are placed
in service and donor-imposed restrictions are satisfied.

Permanently restricted net assets Include net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that
they be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the donors of these assets permit
the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on related investments for general or
specific purposes.

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair' value at the date the
promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is unconditionally received. The gifts are reported as either
temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires {that Is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction Is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of operations as "net assets
released from restriction." Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same

year as received are reflected as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial
statements.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis In the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.

340B Drug Pricing Program

The Organization, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. The
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified
entities at a reduced price. The Organization contracts with local pharmacies under this program.
The local pharmacies dispense drdgs to eligible patients of the Organization and bill Medicare and
commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization. Reimbursement received by the pharmacies
is remitted to the Organization, less dispensing and administrative fees. Gross revenue generated
from the program is included in patient service revenue. Contracted expenses and drug costs
incurred related to the program are included in other operating expenses.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue.

Functional Expenses

The Organization provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services :are as follows:

2017 2016

Program services $15,198,514 $13,439,463
Administrative and general 2,138,503 1,619,871
Fundraising 188.327 171.807

Total $17.525.344 $15.231.141

tPeficIt^ Excess of Revenue Over Expenses

The statements of operations reflect the (deficit) excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in
unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the (deficit) excess of revenue over expenses,
consistent with industry practice, include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets
acquired using contributions which, by donor restriction, were to be used for the purposes of
acquiring such assets).

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation; of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through December 6, 2017, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

2. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2017 2016

Land $  81,000 $  81,000

Building and leasehold improvements 4,327,993 3,877,039
Furniture and equipment 1.693.049 1.545.895

Total cost 6,102,042 5,503,934

Less accumulated depreciation 2.099.884 1.764.795

, 4,002.158 3,739,139

Construction-in-process . 360.260 56.990

(

Property and equipment, net S 4.362.418 $ 3.796.129

3. Line of Credit

The Organization has a $1,000,000 line of credit demand note with a local banking institution. The
tine of credit is cotlateralized by all assets and a second mortgage on the Organization's real
property. The interest rate Is LIBOR plus 3.5% {4.73% at June 30, 2017). There was an
outstanding balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2017 of $810,000 and no outstanding balance
in 2016. The line of credit was increased to $1,500,000 in July 2017.

4. Lona-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

2017 2016

Note payable, with a local bank (see terms below)

Note payable, New Hampshire'Health and Education Facilities
Authority (NHHEFA), payable in monthly installments of $513,
including interest at 1.00%, due July 2020, collateralized by
all business assets

Total long-term debt
Less current maturities ^

Long-term debt, less current maturities

$ 1,240,109 $ 1,284,696

18.682

1,258,791
52.316

24.617

1,309,313

51.049

$ 1.206.475 $ 1.258.264
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MANCHESIjER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

|June 30, 2017 and 2016

The Organization has a promissofy note with Citizens Bank, N. A. (Citizens) for the purchase of
the medical and office facility in Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is collateralized by the real
estate. The note is a five-year baljoon note due December 1, 2018 to be paid at the amortization
rate of 25 years. The note is borrowed at a variable interest rate with margins adjusted annually on
July 1 based on the Organization's achievement of two operating performance milestones
(2.8667% at June 30, 2017). NHHEFA is participating in the lending for 30% of the promissory
note. Under the NHHEFA program, the interest rate on that portion is approximately 30% of the
interest rate charged by Citizens.

The Organization is required to,meet an annual minimum working capital and debt service
coverage as defined in the loan agreement with Citizens. In the event of default, Citizens has the
option to terminate the agreement and immediately request payment of the outstanding debt
without notice of any kind to the Organization. After receiving a waiver from Citizens to exclude
certain one-time items from the debt service coverage calculation, the Organization is in

■ compliance with all loan covenants, at June 30. 2017.

Scheduled principal repayments of long-term debt are as follows:

2018 $ 52,316
2019 1.199.784

2020 6.115
2021 518

2022 ' 58

5. Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

I

Temporarily and permanently restricted net assets consisted of the following as of June 30:

2017 2016

1

Temporarily restricted i
Program services $ 148,927 $ 74,280
Child health services 269,272 356,884
Capital improvements (expended) 66,955 93,546
Capital improvements (not yet in service) 325.005 56.990

Total $ 810.159 $ 581.700

Permanently restricted

Working capital $ 101,358 $ 101.358
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30. 2017 and 2016

6. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue follows:

2017 2016

Gross charges
340B pharmacy revenue

$16,357,934
919.437

$15,972,455
802.683

Total gross revenue 17,277,371 16,775,138

Contractual adjustments
Sliding fee scale discounts

(6,088,033)
f1.454.8931

(5,822,424)
n.668.6861

Total patient service revenue $ 9.734.445 $ 9.284.028

Revenue from the Medicaid and Medicare programs accounted for approximately 52% and 9%,
respectively, of the Organization's gross patient service revenue for the year ended June 30, 2017
and 59% and 8%, respectively, for the year ended June 30. 2016. Laws and regulations governing
the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. The Organization
believes that it is in compliance with all laws and regulations. Compliance with such laws and
regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently
determined to be recoverable or payable are included in patient service revenue in the year that
such amounts become known.

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the medical care of qualified patients on a prospective basis,
with retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by Federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement is subject
to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization's Medicare cost reports have been
audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through June 30, 2016.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization also has entered into payment agreements with Medicaid and certain
commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Organization under these agreements includes
prospectively-determined rates per visit, discounts from established charges, and capitated
arrangements for primary care services on a per member, per month basis.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. The Organization estimates the costs
associated with providing charity care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges and then
multiplying that ratio by the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to
patients eligible for free care. The estimated cost of providing services to patients under the
Organization charity care policy amounted to $1,620,083 and $1,649,562 for the years ended June
30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants.

7. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) that
covers substantially all employees. The Organization contributed $289,444 and $266,304 for the
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

8. Concentration of Risk

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of accounts
receivable, by funding source, at June 30;

2017 2016

Medicare 14% 15%

Medicaid 42 % 46 %
Other 44%

100 % 100 %

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, grants from DHHS
(including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations) represented
approximately 81% and 72%, respectively, of grants and contracts revenue.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

9. Commitments and Contingencies

Medical Malpractice Insurance

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice Insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of the year ended
June 30, 2017, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of
management, will be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and additional medical
malpractice insurance coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require
loss accrual. The Organization intends to renew the additional medical malpractice insurance
coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available.

Leases

The Organization leases office space and certain other office equipment under noncancelable
operating leases. Future minimum lease payments under these leases are:

2018 $ 195,595
2019 134,132
2020 78,791

2021 73,107

2022 74,276

Thereafter 132.740

Total $ 688.641

Rent expenses amounted to $269,771 and $246,564 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

10. Financial Improvement Plan

The Organization incurred a significant operating loss during 2017. The financial statements have
been prepared assuming the Organization will continue as a going concern, realizing assets and
liquidating liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Although not currently planned, realization
of assets in other than the ordinary course of business in order to meet liquidity needs could result
in losses not reflected in these financial statements.

Management is working on several initiatives to mitigate losses going forward. As discussed
below, management believes the combination of planned initiatives will provide the required cash
flow and reduction of operating losses to sustain future operations.
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MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER

I
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

During 2017, approximately $917,000 in bad debt write-offs occurred for charges incurred in 2015
and 2016, and were primarily thel result of regulatory issues with credentialing of providers and
timely filing limits imposed by managed care insurers, and are not expected to recur in 2018. In
addition, provider utilization declined in 2017 due to reduced capacity during renovations, which
will be completed in the first quarter of 2018. That utilization reduction was approximately
$290,000 in 2017. ,

In 2017, the Organization was awarded a grant and acted in good faith. Incurring nearly $250,000
in expenses to provide the services, but never received the final signed prospective contract until
2018. Management also plans to implement enhanced charges in 2018 that will capture services
currently being provided but not being billed for which is estimated to provide another $200,000 in
revenue annually, as well as expanding 3406 pharmacy activities which would also provide
another $100,000 annually.
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.Christine Wolfendale

Objective:

Dedicated, experienced, quatity-focused Licensed Practical Nurse seeking a position

in healthcare to utilize my skill and willingness to learn and grow within company

Experience/SMIIs:
•  impeccable organizational, communication and prioritizing skills

• Nursing desk management Including multl line phones, fax, email, prescription, ROI

• Wide range or nursing/clinical skills and abilities Including medication admlnlstratrcn,

daily evaluations, care planning and Implementation, total assessments, wound care

and prevention, laboratory value Interpretation, peripheral intravenous
insertion/care/maintenance.

•  Substance abuse monitoring, medicating, and assessments including COWS, CIWA,
CIWA B, ASAM criteria documentation

•  EMR Centricity

Education:

• Northern Essex Community College- HaverhlH Massachusetts -
Practical Nurse Program-graduated Cum Laude 2005
Associate Degree in CriminalJustice 2002 - Honors GPA 3.5

•  Internship: Six month Internship at the Essex County Child Abuse Project
located at the Essex County
District Attorney's Office In Salem Massachusetts.



Experience:

• Harbor Homes-Gllmour Medical Respite/Safe stations (10/2017-Current)

Licensed Practical Nurse

1. Ongoing medically necessary monitoring of patients for detox and withdrawal

symptoms and management.

2. Medication administration and patient assessment per unit protocols, Patient

chart documentation

3. Assist with psychosocial and behavioral services including acquiring

behavioral and mental health services,establishing primary care, Insurance

and housing and ongoing medical treatment after discharge, ie

residential/MAT/IOP/PHP programs

•  Lifelinks Community Center and Day Habilitatlon Cheimsford, MA CARF

and Medlcaid accredited center for adults with inteHectual, medical, and

psychological issues, (June 2012-Octpber 2017)

Program Nurse

1. Daily monitoring of individuals participating in the day program for any and all

medical and psychosodal Issues

2. Notify appropriate caregivers and medical health care providers with written

medication dispensing, monitoring for side/adverse effects with written and verbal

notification to health care providers

3. Medical record updating and assurance for required documentation for compliance

reasons

4. Daily monitoring of dietary requirements for medical purposes, ongoing

, communication with multiple team merhbers to insure quality of care

• Methuen Health and Rehabilitation Center - Short term sub-acute and
long term care medical facility (December 2005- June 2012)
Charge/Staff Nurse

1. Medication administration, daily monitoring of side/adverse effects, iV therapy,

assessrrients

2. Wound prevention and care, lab report interpretation and reporting, care planning



and implementation

3. In-seividng and supervision of clinical staff, family members and careglvers,

precise and accurate documentation, effective communication to ensure quality

care is provided to the patients and their family

• NRS-Commonwealth of Massachusetts group home affiliated with
Northeast Residential Services (September 2005-December 2005)
Licensed Practical Nurse and Residential Counselor

1. Responsibilities included medication administration, assessments, scheduling and

attendance with individuals to all medical appointments, care

pianning/impiementation/revlsions/reporting, activities of daily living

• Direct care for individuals residing in the group home, including medication
administration, monitoring, documentation, medical reviews

References Available upon request



Ana Henriquez

Summary
Administrative Assistant

Qualifications

« Over 5 years experience in all phases of administrative support.
•  Efficient, courteous, detail oriented with ability to multi-task.
•  Proficient with MS Word, Excel, Outlook, ADP Payroll, EagleSoft.
•  Bilingual Spanish/English.

Experience
Assistant Office Manager 09/2011 — 02/2013
Small Smiles Dental Center Manchester, NH

• Assisted the office manager in the day to day operations of a fast paced dental office.
•  Supervised and assigned tasks to office members.
• Assisted with check-in, check-out and scheduling appointments, answered patient questions and

resolved patient complaints.
«  Created and presented treatment plans to patients and went over financial options for payments.
•  Processed insurance claims for an average of 70 charts per day. Interacted with insurance companies

to verify dental benefits and/or to check status of submitted claims. Entered all insurance payment
checks including Medicaid bulk payment checks.

Human Resources/Administrative Assistant 07/2007 — 12/2009
Sterling Linen Services, LLC Manchester, NH
•  Provided all administrative and human resources support in a high-pressure fast paced setting.
•  Served as the bilingual interpreter and first person of contact between 100+ employees and

management to help resolve personnel problems.
«  Recruited, interviewed and selected employees to fill vacant positions. Updated and maintained

confidential employee records including 1-9 compliance files.
•  Updated and maintained over 100 employee time cards to ensure accurate and timely payroll.

Small Business Entrepreneur 11/2002 — 12/2004
Everything and Anything Errands Manchester, NH
•  Started a small business providing excellent services In personal errand runs and residential cleaning.

Administrative Assistant 03/2000 — 10/2002
Miraco, Inc. Manchester, NH
•  Issued and mailed out invoices, statements and checks. Updated and maintained A/P and A/R records.
•  Took the Initiative to create and maintain a system that helped improve the company's collection of

delinquent accounts.

•  Updated and maintained a data base for contact information of customers and sales lead.
• Generated sales leads using Internet and cold calling. Assembled and mailed out company literature and

samples to possible new customers. Updated and maintained all sales and marketing contacts in
database.

Education

Certificates: Blended Solutions Technical Institute - MS Office Specialist and Bookkeeping 2007
Manchester, NH

• Microsoft Office Applications.

« QuickBooks and Accounting Principals.



Nina DeMarco

Objective
To obtain a social work position that will utilize my extensive clinical
experience in the social service field. Strengths include communication and
active listening skills, dependability, critical thinking and empathy.

Education

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMFSfflRE

Master of Social Work, Anticipated December 2016

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, May 2014
Minor in Deaf Studies, Graduated Cum Laude

Professional Experience

MANCHESTER COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER AT CHILD

HEALTH SERVICES, Manchester, NH
MSW Student Intern - March 2016 - November 2016

Provided integrated behavioral health services to patients and their
families in an outpatient primary care setting. Co - facilitated the Personal
Responsibility and Education Program (PREP), providing young teen girls
with sexual health education.

• Conduct brief behavioral health interventions

•  Engage in traditional counseling
•  Employ evidence-based practices including psycho -

therapy. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy, Mindfulness, and
Motivational Interviewing

• Empower participants of the PREP program to make healthy
and informed sexual health decisions

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION - FAMILY WILLOWS INTENSIVE

OUTPATIENT PROGRAM, Manchester, NH
MSW Student Intern - March 2015 - November 2015

Provided group counseling and case management for women with co -
occurring substance abuse and mental health disorders

•  Employed evidence-based curriculum in group settings
•  Formulated client care plans



• Delivered client intakes and orientations

MANCHESTER SCHOOL DISTRICT, Manchester, NH
Substitute Teacher - December 2013 - January 2015
Responsible for Elementary and Middle School aged children. Delivered
classroom appropriate curriculum including special education

• Performed duties required by teacher
• Created a safe and conclusive learning environment

PORTSMOUTH EARLY EDUCATION PROGRAM, Portsmouth, NH
Student Intern - August 2013 - December 2013
Responsible for providing educational programs for preschool and
kindergarten aged children who have identified educational disabilities

•  Evaluated Individualized Education Programs and 504 Plans
• Provided services for children with disabilities including

dyspraxia, autism, and speech delays

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE GABLES MAILROOM, Durham,
NH - Student Mailroom Qerk - August 2012 - May 2014
Responsible for organizing and distributing student mail and packages

• Assisted students with move ins

• Coordinated lockouts and questions
• Provided dedicated student support

GOLDENROD RESTAURANT, Manchester, NH
Waitress/Manager - February 2009 - Present
Responsible for providing distinguished food service and overseeing
employees

• Assist with food preparation
• Cashier

•  Ensure customer satisfaction

''References available upon request
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EDUCATION

Albany Medical Cotle(e,Abanv, NY

Master of Sdenca in Phyddan Acsbtam Studies

See conical experience section for descriptions of cOnlcajrotatlonaaMnpletBd 2014 -2015

UnlvenltyofConnectlaitSfotTS, CT

Badidor of Science In AIDad Health Science
Graduated Magna Cum laude stms

MInon In Btobgyand Psychology

CERTIFICATIONS »

NattonalCommbslon on Certtficattan of Physldan Assistants, ID* 113(B13 2016
ACLS, American Heart Assodatloh ^ 2016

BIS, American Heart Assodatton 2015

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE -

Internal Metfidna Rotation

Albany Medical Caster, Albaey. NY
Perform medical histDry reviews, physical examlnatbns, diagnostic testing, and medication management
Attend dally rounds, Inpatlent grand rounds, and daOy aducattonai conferences. Woric es a member ofthe
healthcare teirrt, present spedflc topla within the teem, complete severd petlent write ups, and a grand
rounds presentation. Write admission orden, progress notes, and problem Dtts.

I

OSAiyn Rotation

Or. lea and BuradL Albany and Troy, NY
Sea patients for annual gynecologic eamfriattons, gynecolo^l complaints, and throughout pregnancy.
Perform physical exams, pelvic exams, diagnostic testing Indudlng STl cultures and PAP smears, lUD
insertion end removal, fotd heart rate Doppler, non-stress tests, Leopold maneuver^ and assist In
gynecoioglcal turgeries and natural and surreal bbths.

Plastic Surgery Elective RtMation

Chao Ptastk Surgery, tetham, MY

See patients for pre-op, post-op, and general outpatient consultation for those with ir\iur1es requiring
reconstruction, as wall as those requcsttig elective procedures. Provide wound care, dressing changes,
first or secortd assist In a wriety of surgloi procedures, sUn grafts, and halrtranspbnts, and perform
Inpatlent rounds and consultations.

Ps^hbtry Rotation

Albany Madicai Center Psychiatry Consult Uabon Service, Albany, NY
Perform in-depth psychological Intervfaws to evaluate a patient's psychological status. Interview
addltkmal family members and dose friends to patients. Work as a member of an Interdisciplinary
■healthcare team to cortstruct management strategies, both diagnostic and therapeutic, for patients
requiring psychiatric care

General Surgery Rotation
Saratoga HuspHal, Saratoga, NY
See patients In outpatient setting for pra-op, pcstKrp, and cortsultatlon appointmarrts. Perform Inpatlent
reimds on post-op patients and consutotions In the emergency department Discuss treatment plans end
surgtcai strategies, and act as first or second asstet In a variety of general surgical procedures. Suture
surgical sites, excise lestons, perform indsbnsand dralrtage, writs progiess notes, pre-op and post-op
notes, and procedure notes.

Family Medicine Rotation
cohoes Runtiy Care, Cobocs, NY
Perform medical history review, physical examinations, dtagnostk testing, and medication reviews for
patients of all ages. Provide preventative and problem based cere, patient education, and nutritional
support as part erf a patient centered medical home fadllty. Perform ear Irrigation and curettage, throat
cultures, fecal occult blood tests, cryotherapy, wound cultures, remove staples end sutures, and
administer nebulizer treatments.
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Pediatrics Rotation

EIUs Pedlatric Care, Schenectady, NY

Perform well baby/chlld examinations as well as management of acute and chronic medical conditions.
Obtain medical history from children as well as families, provide growth and developmental education,
and participate in the formulation of diagnostic and treatment plans.

Urgent Care Elective Rotation

Albany Med EmUrgent Care, Coxsadde and Colonie, NY

Perform focused and effective history and physical examinations, discuss diagnostic and management
plans, and provide patient education for presenting illnesses, injuries, and complaints. Perform Injections,
suture open wounds, provide wound care, throat cultures and rapid strep tests, slit lamp examinations,
administer nebulizer treatments, read x-rays and EKGs, and refer for appropriate follow up.

Orthopedics Rotation

OrthoNY, Saratoga, NY

Perform focused physical examinations on joints and spine, discuss diagnostic options, findings, and
treatment plans for effective management. Perform joint injectlors, wound care, casting, and first or

second assist In a variety of orthopedic surgeries, suture surgical wounds, and apply braces and splints.

Emergency Medicine Rotation

Samaritan Hospital, Troy, NY

Perform focused medical history review and physical examination. Participate in formufating diagnostic
and treatmerrt plans, provide patient education, and work as a member of an Interdisciplinary healthcare
team. Perform injections and wound care, culture wourxls, suture, staple ordermabor>dopen wounds,
perform Incisiorts and drainage, apply splints, remove foreign bodies, administer nebulizer treatments,
perform fluorescein eye exams, insert nasal packing, read x-rays and EKGs.

Pediatrics Elective Primary Care Preceptorship Rotation

Capital Care Pediatrics, Troy, NY

Choose an area of primarycareforan additional rotation, and refine history gathering and physical
examination skills for independent practice.
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WORK EXPERIENCE

Genesis Healthcare, Academy Manor Nursing Home, Andover, MA

Certified Nursing Assistant 2012-2014

Provide personal care and transfer support to residents with various stages of dementia, rehabilitative
goals, or long term care status. Take vital signs, record Intakes and outputs, and provide enpging
emotional support for residents

Jahriing Ocular Prosthetlcs, inc. Boston, MA

Laboratory and Administrative Assistant 2006 - 2012

Assist in the process of custom forming, painting, adjusting, and polishing artificial eyes. Refill supplies, file
patient records, scan and Input patient Information Into the EMR, verify patient insurance eligibility,
generate billing statements and send appointment reminders.

VOLUNTEER/SHADOWING EXPERIENCE

ExpressMed Urgent Care Clinic {at AllCare Medical) In Salem, NH In 2013: Student shadowing PA experience
Generations Family Health Center in Willlmantic, CT from 2011-2012: Patient Care Support Volunteer (LNA duties)

AWARDS AND MEMBERSHIPS

Excellence in Research Poster Presentation at AMC's Graduate Studies Poster Day
Member of New Hampshire Society of Physician Assistants

Member of Massachusetts Association of Physician Assistants

Member of Alpha Lambda Delta Honor Society at the University of Connecticut

2016

2016

2016

2009 - 2012

LANGUAGES

Spanish- speak, read, and write with basic medical proficiency

REFERENCES

Available upon request



Manchester Community Health Center

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid

from

this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Wolfendale, Christine Nurse $56,160.00 20% $11,232.00

Henriquez, Ana Patient Intake (New Pits) $22,174.88 36% $ 7,919.60

Demarco, Nina SUD Program Manager $56,160.00 20% $11,232.00

Mather, Karen MAT Provider I $88,192.00 20% $17,554.82

To be determined Community Health Worker: Outstationed (ED) $34,320.00 100% $34,320.00



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Cocnnussioner

Katja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9422 1-800-852-3345 Ext 9422

Fax:603-271-8431 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.(lhtis.DlLgov

June 29. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Abuse,
to enter Into sole source agreements with the Vendors listed in the table below, to expand the program
infrastructure necessary to provide Medication Assisted Treatment services to individuals with opioid
use disorders, in an amount not to exceed $2,250,000 effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval, through June 30, 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Summary of Contracts

Vendor Name Vendor Location Amount of Contract

Manchester Community Health Center Manchester, NH $900,000
Harbor Homes Nashua, NH $1,350,000

Grand Total $2,250,000

Funding to support this request is available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 and is
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020, subject to the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust amounts within the
budgets and to adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office without
Govemor and Executive Council approval, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-92051010-69350000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH; BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL
MAT GRANT

STATE

FISCAL

YEAR

CLASS CLASS TITLE JOB NUMBER AMOUNT

SFY 2018 102-500734 Contracts for Program Services 92056935 $750,000

SFY2019 102-500734 Contracts for Program Services 92056935 $750,000

SFY 2020 102-500734 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 92056935 $750,000

Grand Total $2,250,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source due to the application process for a federal grant with the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, which required the state to identify and
secure agreements with these two qualified providers and to submit letters of commitment to this
project in advance of the grant being awarded to the Department, subject to Govemor and Executive
Council approval.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
artd the Honorable Executive Coundl

Page 2 of 2

Approval of these contracts will allow these agencies to build the program infrastructure
necessary to provide Medication Assisted Treatment services to approximately 950 residents with
opioid use disorders within three years, in the high need communities of Nashua and Manchester.
Medication Assisted Treatment utilizes medications in combination with behavioral health counseling
and care management services that have been demonstrated to be effective in addressing opioid use
disorders, Including improved engagement in treatment and a reduction in the use of opioids. The
federal grant funds will be used to hire and train qualified staff; develop policies, procedures and
workflow to deliver services; adapt electronic health records IT systems, provide outreach to
underserved individuals with opioid use disorders in the community; and evaluate the quality of the
Medication Assisted Treatment services. Contractors are required to partner with local specialty
substance use disorder and recovery support services agencies to facilitate their accessing any needed
services not provided by their organization. In addition to providirig Medication Assisted Treatment
services the two contractors, Manchester Community Health Center and Harbor Homes, will provide
services to meet their patients' overall healthcare needs, including any co-occurririg mental health
disorders and or medical conditions, and will likewise refer patients to services not provided by their
agency or that are beyond the scope of work for these contracts.

The purpose for these federal funds is to reduce the incidence of untreated and under-treated
opioid use disorders by increasing the number of New Hampshire residents receiving integrated
Medication Assisted Treatment services, co-occurring disorder and medical primary care services in
Nashua and Manchester. The Contract requires both Vendors to serve approximate 950 patients by
June, 2020. Additionally, the performance measures in the Contract require the Vendors to retain 55%
of patients in int^rated Medication Assisted Treatment services for at least six months and to have
least 45% of participating patients demonstrating a reduction in opioid use at six month follow-up.

Additionally, the attached Contract includes language that reserves the right to renew the
contract for up to one (1) additional year, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory
performance of contracted sen/ices and Govemor and Executive Council approval.

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not approve this request, these high risk, high need
individuals will lose this opportunity to receive critical, evidence-based treatment and recovery services,
putting them at greater risk of overdose which may result in death and diminishing their ability to be
productive family and community members. The State also would not be able to leverage federal funds
to address this critical need.

Area Served; Communities of Manchester and Nashua

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from Substance Abuse and Mental Health Sen/ices
Administration, Medication-assisted Treatment, MAT, Grant. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFD) #93.243, Federal Assistance Identification Number # FAINTI026741

In the eyent that Federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support these agreements.

^  Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:
Meyers

Commissioner

The Depertment of Heetth and Human Senhces' Mission is tojoin communities and famHies
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and indeper)dence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (versioD 5/8/15)
Subject: Assisted Treatment Services Infrstructure Expansion rSS-2018.BDAS-Q2.MATSFj2^

fcJfitifie: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any Information that is piHvate, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

L  IDENTIFICATION.

I. I State Agency Name
NH Pepartment of Health and Human Services

t  State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 ContfBctor Name

Manchester Community Health Center
1.4 Contractor Address

145 Hollis.Street
Manchester NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

603-935-5229

1.6 Account Number

05-095-092-6935-102-500734

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2020

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director

1.8 Price Limitation

S 900,000.

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1.11 Con 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Mc-C^gcVo , ̂rfs I detTi-1 CEO
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of >0 VA . County of HiWibofOUjUv

On before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person ̂ tifawj,in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11. and acknowledged that in the caoacitv
indicated in block 1.12.
1-I3.i Signature of Notary Public or Jii^ice of the Pf^ ^ 4?^ '-V my '% ^

^  . 5 / COMMISSION 5

fse^r Sj/xC' I J
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace \ ^

(S^loson,
1.14 State Agency Signature

?> t ^ - Date: | ) ^ h
1.16 Approval bytheN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnelsd^p/'ca6/e;

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

intcfmtmn llivicmn nf ^

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval^by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By-VVl /\ ft / \ . » / .On:

in
1.18 Approval by the Governor

By:

Executivetive Council. (ijapplicable) f

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described In the attached
EXHIBIT A which Is incorpioratcd herein by referetice
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES,

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such ̂ proval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Service prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITiONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued ̂ propriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder In excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds I^ome available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving die Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which Is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision In this Agreement lo the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected clrcumstaiKes, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the I^ce Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose aiiy obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary,
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation; or national ori^n and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any.part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all.the
provisions of Executive Order No. II246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who js a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive tcnninallon of this
ApwinenL
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

vent of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satislactoriiy or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, tertn or condition
of this AgreOTCnt.
8.2 Upon the occurreiKe of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or rnore^ or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give Ae Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Eveitt of [)efault is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days affer giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Slate may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreerttent as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.
9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, stirveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, rrotes, letten, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
deuiil all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the ̂ te of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any bertefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSiCNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior writteni.ii^ce and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties assert^ against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at hs sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggre^e; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endoisements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

0f4 , /
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificatc(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatcfs) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) ofinsurmcc required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificaie(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be ahached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contr^tor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
{" tVdrkers' Compensation"}.
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement Contractor shall
furrush the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation In the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this AgreemenL

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or otiwr Event of Defoult
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein. "

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed ^
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State taw, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS,
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties arKi their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in ̂ vorof any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not Intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreemem
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to ainy state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of coumerparts, each of which sfuill
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance

services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or sen/ices within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

»

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Senrices described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30,2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 and SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

2. Statement of Work
2.1. The Contractor shall expand their currently existing Medication Assisted

Treatment (MAT) services through the activities in this Agreement to serve
approximately 200 adults with opioid use disorders who are assessed to be
clinically appropriate for MAT and who liveMork in the Greater Manchester area.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide MAT services with fidelity to federal, state, and best
practices, recommendations as described in the "Guidance Document on Best
Practices; Key Components for Delivering Community-Based Medication
Assisted Treatment Services for Opioid Use Disorders in NH" available at:

httD://wwwdhhs.nh.Qov/dctics/bdas/documents/matquidancedoc.Ddf

2.3. The Contractor shall identify infrastructure needs and conduct activities
necessary to increase and enhance capacity to implement MAT services as
follows, but not limited to:

2.3.1. Recruit and hire additional staffing.

2.3.2. Make Modifications to the electronic health record (EHR) system.

2.3.3. Provide training for staff in an effort to initiate or expand current office
based opioid treatment (OBOT) programs that deliver medication
assisted treatment with approved medications including buprenorphine
and naltrexone and to refer patients for treatment with methadone.

2.4. The Contractor shall establish a team comprised of current or nevirly-recruited
staff to deliver MAT services, with sufficient staff to provide three core roles;

2.4.1. Medical oversight and prescribing.

2.4.2. Behavioral health counseling.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials ^ .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

2.4.3. Care coordination, which includes but is not limited to coordinating
induction, administering urihe screens and monitoring results, ensuring
collaboration of providers, and assisting with accessing social services.

2.5. The Contractor shall develop collaborative relationships with external partners to
provide additional MAT services not available through the Contractor's agency,
which shall include, but not be llmited.to:

2.5.1. MAT services with Methadorie.

2.5.2. Intensive levels of Behavioral Health counseling not available at their
agency.

2.5.3. Ancillary non-clinical recovery support services that reduce barriers to a
client's participation in treatment or recovery, which may include, but not
be limited to. peer recovery support services, transportation, child care,
and employment services.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure the availability of initial and on-going training and
resources to all staff to include buprenorphine waiver training for Interested
physicians, nurse practitioners, and physician assistants. The Contractor shall
develop a plan for Department approval to train and engage appropriate staff.

2.7. The Contractor must participate in training and technical assistance activities as
directed by the Department, including but not limited to the Community of
Practice for MAT, which may include project-specific trainings, quarterly web-
based discussions, on-site technical assistance visits and ad hoc communication
with expert consultants on MAT clinical care topics such as Hepatitis C Virus
(HCV) and Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) prevention, diversion risk
mitigation and other relevant issues.

2.8. The Contractor shall develop polides and practices consistent with the Guidance
Document related to, but not limited to:

2.8.1. Evaluation and medical exam In order to obtain Information to verify that
patients meet criteria for opioid use disorders and are appropriate for
MAT level of care, and determine the appropriate medication.

2.8.2. Induction procedures.

2.8.3. Integration of behavioral health counseling.

2.8:4. Documentation of MAT services.

2.8.5. Billing procedures.

2.8.8. Urine drug testing.

2.8.7. Discharge from MAT services.

2.9. The Contractor shall develop a workflow to provide patients with appropriate
medical oversight for improved access and retention with . MAT services by
ensuring the following, which shall include but not be limited to^S^^

2.9.1. Prescribing.

2.9.2. Diversion prevention activities.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

2.9.3. Counseling.

2.9.4. Care coordination.

2.9.5. Other appropriate ancillary services.

2.10. The Contractor shall utilize the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (POMP) for
each prescription.

,2.11. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with confidentialrty requirements, which
shall Include, but not be limited to:

2.11.1. Federal and state laws;

2.11.2. HIPAA Privacy Rule; and

2.11.3. 42C.F.R. Part 2.

2.12. The Contractor shall provide timely communication among the patient,
prescriber, counselor, care coordinator, and external providers.

2.13. The Contractor shall modify their EHR and clinical work flow to ensure required
processes and data collection.

2.14. The Contractor shall administer the GPRA data collection tool during face-to-^ce
patient interviews at intake, 6 month follow-up and at discharge from MAT
services. In order to obtain high collection rates, incentives may be offered to
patients for their time in completing the 6 month follow-up and discharge
interviews.

2.15. The Contractor shall ensure meaningful input of consumers in program
assessment, planning, implementation and improvement.

2.16. The Contractor shall use data to support quality Improvement, using TA as
needed.

2.17. The Contractor shall maintain the Infrastructure necessary to achieve the goals of
MAT Expansion, to meet the Sutjstance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) Medication Assisted Treatment Grant requirements
and to deliver effective care to patients with an Opiold Use Disorder/Co-
Occumng Disorder OUD/COD.

2.18. The Contractor shall communicate with the Continuum of Care Facilitator(s)
regarding their service's role in the development of a resiliency and recovery
oriented system of care (RROSC) in their reglon(s).

2.19. The Contractor shall engage in evaluation activities, as directed by the
Department, including data collection and reporting In Section 3.

2.20. The Contractor shall develop and implement outreach activities about MAT and
wrap around services to persons with. Opioid Use Disorders (OUDs), in
accordance with a Department approved outreach plan designed to inform the
high-risk population and engage them In sen/ices. Outreach materials. Including
but not limited to brochures, posters, and social media, will be developed and
disseminated using Technical Assistance as needed. These materials must be
culturally appropriate, follow the Departments Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Standards (CLAS). and be approved by the Department.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A Contractor Initials .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

2.21. The Contractor shall develop and Implement a process to evaluate and report on
patient satisfaction with the MAT services. The Contractor shall submit for
Department approval the evaluation process.

2.22. The Contractor shall participate in all meetings, trainings and site visits required
by SAMHSA and the Department.

2.23. The Contractor shall submit for Department approval within the timeline defined
in Section 4.3 a sustainability plan to continue to provide medication assisted
treatment services beyond the completion date of the contract.

3. Work Plan

3.1. The Contractor shall submit for Department approval within the timeline defined
in Section 5.2 a work plan describing the process for ensuring the completion all
aspects of the Scope of Services as listed In this Agreement. The Contractor
shall include in the work plan:

3.1.1. Activities and plans describing how the Contractor will complete the
scope of work.

3.1.2. Target number of patients to be served.

3.1.3. Deliverables ,

3.1.4. Due Dates

3.2. The Contractor shall develop an outreach plan designed to inform persons with
OUDs at)out available MAT and wrap around services and to engage them in
these services. This outreach plan shall be submitted with the work plan in
Section 3.1.

3.3. The Contractor shall participate in project status meetings as scheduled by the
Department to discuss progress and changes to the work plan.

3.4. The Contractor shall inform the Department within five business days any issues
that affect the performance of the contract. The Contractor shall recommend
solutions to resolve the issues.

4. Reporting
4.1. The Contractor will collect, manage and report data using the wet>-t)ased tool

identified by SAMHSA in accordance with the Government Performance and
Results Modernization Act of 2010 (GPRA). GPRA data shall be collected from
each patient at 3 points during their treatment, as required by SAMHSA.

4.2. In addition to the requirements in Section 3.1, The Contractor shall provide
quarterly status reports t)ased on work plan to include, but not be limited to:

4.2.1. Work plan progress against the actual work plan activities in Section
3.1.1 through 3.1.4,

4.2.2. Staff (existing and newly hired) retained to support MAT.

4.2.3. Numt>er of physicians, nurse practitioners, and physician assistants
waivered to prescribe buprenorphine.

4.2.4. Policies and practices established. .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medicatjon Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

4.2.5. Changes made to the Initial work plan.

4.2.6. Training and technical assistance needed.

4.2.7. Number of patients receiving MAT in the reporting quarter, year to date
and contract period to date.

4.2.8. Wait times, as indicated by numt)er of days from initial contact to the
Initiation/delivery of services.

4.2.9. Patient satisfaction.

4.2.10. Number of patients referred to Opiate Treatment Programs for MAT with
methadone.

4.2.11. Outreach activities.

4.2.12. Other progress to date.

4.3. The Contractor shall provide, to the Department within forty-five (45) business
days prior to the Contract completion date in General Provisions P-37 Block 1.7,
a sustainability plan as described in Section 2.23 to continue to provide
medication assisted treatment services beyond the completion date of the
contract, subject to approval by the Department.

4.4. The Contractor shall provide a final report to the Department within forty-five (45)
business days from the Contract completion date in General Provisions P-37
Block 1.7. The Contractor shall include in the final report the following information
based on the work plan, but shall not be limited to;

4.4.1. Work plan progress against the actual wrk plan activities in Section
3.1.1 through 3.1.4.

4.4.2. Staff (existing and newly hired) retained to support MAT.

4.4.3. Number of physicians, nurse practitioners, and physician assistants
waivered to prescribe buprenorphine.

4.4.4. Policies and practices established.

4.4.5. Outreach activities completed.

4.4.6. Number of patients receiving MAT prior to contract as compared to the
number of patients receiving MAT during the contract period, including
the following information, but not limited to:

4.4:6.1. Demographic (gender, age, race, ethnicity).

4.4.6.2. Outcome data (as directed by the Department).

4.4.6.3. Patient satisfaction.

4.4.7. Description of challenges encountered and action taken.

4.4.6. Other progress to date as required by the Department.

Manchester Community Health Center Exhibit A -Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit A

5. Deliverables
5.1. The Contractor shall provide medication assisted treatment services as in

Section 2.1 in accordance with the work plan.

5.2. The Contractor shall submit a work plan as outlined in Section 3 for the
Department's review and approval within forty-five (45) business days of the
contract's effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports according to Section 4.2.

5.4. The Contractor shall submit a final report within forty-five (45) business days of
termination of the contract according to Section 4.3.

6. Performance Measures
6.1. The Contractor shall meet evaluation measures required by SAMHSA, the

Department and the Department's contracted Evaluator for the SAMHSA MAT
grant/project.

6.1.1. The Contractor shall gather data and monitor performance as defined in
Section 6.1.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with performance measures
generated through GPRA reporting.

6.2.1. The Contractor shall enter GPRA data according to the federal
requirements.

6.3. The Contractor's performance for providing MAT services in this contract will be
measured by adherence to the guidance document in Section 2.2. and by the
number and percentage of patients during the reporting quarter, year to date, and
total contract period, who receive the following services;

6.3.1. Number of patients with OUDs receiving integrated MAT.

6.3.2. Receiving medical oversight, irtcluding prescribing or administration of
medication.

6.3.3. Receiving care coordination/case management

6.3.4. Receiving Behavtoral health counseling.

6.3.5. Receiving peer recovery support services.

6.4. The Contractor shall retain 55% of partidpating patients in Integrated MAT
senrices for at least 6 months.

6.5. The Contractor shall have 45% of partidpating patients with reduced opioid use
at 6 month follow up. "Reduced opioid use" means using less illicit opiolds at 6
month follow-up than amount used prior to initiating treatment.
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88-2018-BDAS-02-MATSE-02 Page 6 of 6 Date mm



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Medication Assisted Treatment Services Infrastructure Expansion

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form p.37, Block 1.8, Price. Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract Is funded with funds from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration. Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) Grant. CFDA #93.243 FAIN TI026741. 100%
Federal Funds

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with funding
requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current
and/or future funding.

2) The Contractor shall use and apply all contract funds for authorized direct and indirect costs to provide services
in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in accordance with Budgets Exhibit B-1, Exhibit B-2 and Exhibit B-3.

3) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows;

2.1. Payment shall t>e on a cost reimbursement basis for allowable costs arxf expenses incurred In the
fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved Budgets Exhibit B-1, Exhibit
B-2 and, Exhibit B-3.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice using forms provided by the Department, by the twentieth working
day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurred in
the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in
order to initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to
Department programs and services pursuant to this Agreement.

2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice, for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement, subsequent to approval of the submitted
invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

2.4. . The Contractor shall submit invoices for services outlined in Exhibit A, Scope of Services in accordance
with budget line iterns in Exhibit B-3, Budget preferably by e-mail on Department approved invoices to:

Program Manager
Division for Behavioral Health

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Lindy.keller@dhhs.nh.gov

2.5. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, block 1,7.

4) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this Contract may be
withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or Federal law. rule or regulation
applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.

5) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line items in Budget Exhibit B-1. Exhibit B-2 and Exhibit B-3 within the price limitation, and to adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties gnd may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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Exhibit 6-1 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services'

Bidder/Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

Medication Assisted Treatment Services
Budget Request for: Infrastructure Expartsion

Contract Name

Budget Period: SPY 2018: G&C approval through June 30.2018

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 288,862.00 s $
2. Employee Benefits $ - $ $ .

3. Consultants $ 2,000.00 $ $ 2.000.00
4. Equipment $ - $ $ _

Rental $ $ $
Repair and Maintenance $ $ $
Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies: $ $ $
Educational $ $ $
Lab $ - $ $
Pharmacy $ 2,000.00 $ $ 2.000 00
Medical $ 1,000.00 $ $ 1,000.00
Office. $ 138.00 $ $ 138.00

6. Travel $ 500.00 $ $ 500.00
7. Occupancy $ - $ $
8. Current Expenses $ $ $

Telephone $ $ $
Postage $ $ $
Sut}scnptions $ $ $
Audit and Legal $ $ $
Insurance $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $
10. Marketing/Communications $ - $ $
11. Staff Education and Training $ 2,000.00 $ $ 2,000,00
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ $
13. Other (specific details mandatory); S - $ $

14. EMR/HER Licenses $ 1,000.00 $ $ 1,000.00
15. EMR modifications to facilitate data $ 2,500.00 $ s 2,500.00

$ . $ $
$ $ $
$ - $ $

TOTAL i 300,000.00 1 »  ■ 1 mmM\
0.0%

Exhibit 8-1
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Exhibit B-2 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

Medication Assisted Treatment Services
Budget Request for Infrastructure Expansion

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPT 2019: July 1.2018 through June 30.2019

I  i-i«

1. Total Salary/Waqes 1 $ 293,014.00 $ $
2. Employee Benefits $ . $ $
3. Consultants $ 2,000.00 $ $ 2,000.00
4. Equipment $ . $ $

Rental $ $ $
Repair and Maintenance $ $ $
Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies; $ $ $

Educational $ $ $
Lab $ $ .

Phamiacy $ 1,000.00 $ $ 1,000.00
Medical $ 1,000.00 $ $ 1,000.00
Office S - $ $ _

6. Travel $ 500.00 $ $ 500.00
7. Occupancy $ - $ S ■

8. Current Expenses $ $ $
Telephone $ $ $

Postage $ $ $
Subscriptions $ $ $
Audit and Legal $ $ $

Insurance - $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ - $ sz .

10. Marketing/Communications s 486.00 $ ri~ 486.00
11. Staff Education and Training $ 2.000.00 $ $ 2,000.00
12. Sut)contracts/Aqreements $ - $ $ .

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $

$ $ $

$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ - $ $

TOTAL T 1 iM.M6.D6 1
0.0%

E^ibtt B-2
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Exhibit B-3 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Contractor Name: Manchester Community Health Center

Medication Assisted Treatment Services

Budget Request for Infrastructure Expansion
(Name of f^P)

Budget Period: SPY 2020: July 1. 2019 through June 30.2020

V'i.

.».■ •( 1 :

-

1 . •
•

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 293.014.00 $ $ 293,014.00
2. Employee Benefits $ - $ $ -

3. Consultants $ 2,000.00 $ $ 2.000.00
4. Equipment: $ - $ $ -

Rental $ $ $
Repair and Maintenance $ $ $
Purchase/Depreciation $ $ $

5. Supplies: $ $ $
Educational $ $ $
1 nh $ - $ $ .

Pharmacy $ 1,000.00 $ $ 1,000.00
Medical $ 1,000.00 $ $ 1,000.00
Office $ - $ $ .

6. Travel $ 500.00 $ $ 500.00
7. Occupancy $ - $ $ -

6. Current Expenses $ $ $
Telephone $ $ $
Postage $ $ $
Subscriptions $ $ $
Audit and Legal $ $ $
Insurance $ $ $
Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ - $ s .

10. MarKeting/Communications $ 486.00 $ $ 486,00
11. Staff Education and Training S 2,000.00 $ $ 2,000.00
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $
$ $ $

-  1i BZ -

TOTAL T 300.000.00 1 s T" JW,604.66 1
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Exhibit B-3 Budget
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligtole
Individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Crmpllance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guldelir^es. policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are pre$crit>ed by
the Department. .

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination arid such other information as the
Departmerrt r^uests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility detenminatiorTs that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understarKls that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contrartor hereby covenants and agrees that ail applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance ̂  Department regulations. .

5. Gratultios or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any'sub-corYtract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
ar^ no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

1. ^nditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contalried shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
heiwnder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

■ which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
^e which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereu^er. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. .Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amourtt of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

/'

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
p^ltted to determine the ellgibllity of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligbllity records specified atx>ve, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

•  8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during ttie Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property refl^ all suc^ costs and.expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without Irmitatjon. all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
pur^ase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
lr>-klr)d contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, arwl other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. StatBtical Records: Statistical, enrollment attendance or visit records for each recipient of
service during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to ̂ tain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Corttractof shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
ager)cy fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizatiorts,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Offfce (GAG standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, exceeds and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities; In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any st^e
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All irrformatlon, reports, arid records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such (nfomiatlon. disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
tfw use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attomey or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initiais

Page 2 of 5 Date



New Hampshire Oepartment of Heaith and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11 Reports: Fiscal and Statisticai: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other infonnation required by the Department

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/orsurvive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Experwjiture Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Oepartment shall retain the right at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All dowments. notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the followina
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Cof^right Ownership: All materials (writtCT, video, audio) produced or
purchas^ under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
pnor written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the tacillty or the provision of the services at such facility. If any govemmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the p^ormance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, arxf shall be in conformance with local building and zonirra codes by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOR): The Contractor will provide an Equal Emptoyment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), If It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 o^
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more employees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/at>out/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Senrices for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 andTrtle VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to erasure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
VVhistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substarice of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all .
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Sut)contractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(8). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the sut>contractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following;
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsfoilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's perfomiance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - special Provbions Contractor initfats
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule kJentrfying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficierK:ies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DERNITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of e)q)ense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCI^ MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled Tinancial Management Guidelir>es" and which contains the regulations governing the firrancial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document sul)mitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department arxJ containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A. for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulg^ed thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Extiibft C - Spedai Provisions
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the Ger>eral Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
nx^ifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement arid the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, iri the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of-
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, bu\ not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
alxxit the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to one additional year, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor
and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDiNG DRUG«FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Wort<place Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Scions
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pagw
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a daig-free workpl^. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantiae (and by inference, sub-grantees and sulxontractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certifrcate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actioru that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

.  1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees atx>ut
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the worltplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to t>e engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as.a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee wHl
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than.five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit O-Ceftification regarding Drug Free Contractor Irritiah
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identrfication numberfs) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free worttplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2. 1.3.1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name; MancV\d5r\e<' CovV(rv\C>a"\4u

a 23
Namfe:

IC to
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CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on L^bying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Trtie IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Tide IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriate funds have been paid or will be.paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an emptoyee of a Member of Congress in
conriection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendn^nt, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memt>er of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (arKi by specific mention sub^rantee or sut>-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Ei^ibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shaD require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including sutjcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sut>-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliarwe was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certific^ion is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure'.

Contractor Name:

Name: ^A c Crt>cVi<r\

G60
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this trar^action.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliartce was placed
when DHHS, determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom tfiis proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "Ineligible," 'lower tier covered
transaction." "participant," "person," "primary covered transactnn." "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be constru^ to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

c
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. If a participant In a •
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
1 i. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligtbie, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of eml>ezzlement. theft, forgery, bribery, felsification of destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have rwt within a three-year period preceding this applicatlorVproposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defeult.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the t>est of Its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
irtclude this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibllity. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," wthout modification in an lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Dete' Namei^vi^rMtTxacS)?^"
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^ASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The ConttBctor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as kjenlified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: '

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimirtation requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which proh&its
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, cither in employment practices or in
the delrvery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, cotor, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Empbyment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Sectbn 5672(b)) whbh adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in empbyment practbes or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religbn, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Empbyment Opportunity Plan requirements;

" fhe Civil Rights Act of 19M (42 U.S.C. Section 20(X)d. whbh prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistarwe from discr^lrtating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity):
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). whbh prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Arnericans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sectbns 12131-34). whbh prohibits
discriminatbn and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in empbyment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportattan;

- the Educatbn Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683,1685-86), whbh prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sectbns6106-07), which prohbits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
empbyment discriminatbn;

-28C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulatbns-OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulatbns - Nondiscrimination; Equal Empbyment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (^ual protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizatbns); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizatbns;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Just^ Regulatbns - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protectbns 41 U.S.C. §4712 andThe Natbnal Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2.2013) the Pibt Program for
Enhancemertt of Contract Empbyee Whistlebbwer Protections, whbh protects empbyees against
reprisal for certain whistte blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out bebw Is a material representation of foct upon which reliance is placed when the
agency wards the grant. False certification or vblation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspensbn or terminatbn of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or divisbn within the Department of Health and Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contra^or identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sectrons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followina
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name. V^ca

lefnfn
Date ' NanreT^hTis

jCBO

tfilnA

ftlv.

ExhlbitG
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public 103-227. Part 0 - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, ban. or loan guarantee. The
law ̂ s not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contrador identifi^ in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
wrth all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name;

Dati ^ Name: )hr\S-^cCr£xCViCt^

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business '
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shaD mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b- "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aagreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Acf means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlli, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "indivkluai" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'PfTvacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

"Protect^ Health information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^

Exhibit I Contractor Inittab
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. •Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law* in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, SubpartC, and amendments thereto.

0- 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Irtformatlon.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the senrices outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth iri paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered ^

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifyirrg
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business ̂

ExWbHI Contradof InWaia \l^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate t>ecomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations, the risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-Identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractors lousiness associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

Exhibit I Contractor Initiafa \AJ
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnificatjon from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's com^iance with the terms of the Agreement

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524!

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record at>out an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate'any such amendrrrent to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would t>e required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fpnArarded requests. However, if fonnrarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI ar»d limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business ^

3/2014 Exhibil I Contractor Intttals
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Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has t)een destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shad notify Business Associate of any cKanges or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Cover^ Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure die
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Ariiendrrjenf. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state taw.

Ownershio. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall lie resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. ^

Exhibit I Contradof
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Seareoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the applicaUon thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

SMrvival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disdosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Auith îzed Representative

Trtie of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of the Contractor 33

Si^fiaftjre of Authorized Representative

fas McGotVipn
Name of Authorized Representative

EO
AuthortzTitle of Authorized Representative

J f
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE ^

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
d^a related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is t>elow $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is sut^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information) the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements'
1. Narhe of entity
2. Amount of avrard

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fundir>g action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of perfonnance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Contractor Identified in Section 1:3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certi^tion:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and TransparerKy Act.

Contractor Name:

CBO
Title:

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials 4^^
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FORM A

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. in your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 ̂rcent or more of your annual gross revenue in tJ.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or rhore in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, sul)contracts. loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to <f2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U:S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as MIows:

Name

Name

Name

Name

Name

Amount:

Amount;

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

CU/DHHS/110713
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DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confidential information; In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, the Department's Confidential information includes any and all information own^ or managed by the
St^e of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by st^e or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI), Per^nalty Identifiable Information (Pll), Federal Tax Information (FTI),
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information.

2. The >fondor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery contract^ services. Minimum expectations include:

2.1. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the
information lifecycle. where afi^llcable. (from creation, transformation, use. storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or
store Department confidential information where applicat>le.

2.3. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops, USB
driv^. as well as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet using current indust^
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.4. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can
impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Department confidential information

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notification and Incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Departmer^'s contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided In this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security incident or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.6.1.'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* In section 164.402 of Title 45. Code of

Federal Regulations. 'Computer Security Incident' shad have the same meaning "Computer
Security Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications will be sent to the following email addresses:

2.6.1.1. DHHSChlefinformationOfficer@dhhs.nh.Qov

2.6.1.2. DHHSInformatk)nSecuritvOffice@dhhs.nh.aov

2.7. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub-contractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
termir^lon; and will obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.
When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered
unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted starfoards for secure
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deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor will
document and certify in writing at lime of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the
Department upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data
has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements will t>e jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction.

2.8. If the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supportir^g the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements th^ at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Hampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department systemfs). Agreements will
be corripleted and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103, the veridor vriil
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department arid is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey vrill be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame at ̂  Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express vwitten consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership memtier within the Department.

ExNbR K - OHHS Infomiation Security Requirements Contractor Initiate
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